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Business overview

QrQIvVo

THE UK'S LEADING COMMUNICATIONS
INFRASTRUCTURE AND MEDIA SERVICES COMPANY

We live in an always on, always connected warld Millions of people depend darlly on a continuous stream of
information, education, entertainment and conversation

Arqva 15 the UK's leading communications —= ., s < v
infrastructure and media services company, providing
much of the infrastruclure behind telewision, radio,
satellite, wireless and machine-to-machine
communications in the UK Our engineers led the
largest broadcast engineenng project m UK history with
the successful completion of the switch over from
analogue to digital TV in 2012 (Digital Switch Over —
‘DSOY)

We have a nch histary of mnovation, providing the
transmission capabiity for the UK Govemment's first
budget broadcast in 1928 We were behind the first
satellite TV tests in 1978, and other 'firsts’ including the
world's first digital terrestrial TV launch in 1998 and the
world's first outsourced mobite phone network in 2001

Arqiva continues to butld on #ts pioneenng herlage and to grow its people, technology and capabiiies Arqva's
success in winning the 15 year smart metenng contract in the North of England and Scotland hag enabled us to
pursue wider opportunities 1n this market  The smart melenng contract invalves building a new network and delivering
the smart energy metenng communications service for Scotland and the North of England, as well as managing
engagement with the energy industry and other key stakeholders We are now pursuing new business apportunities m
related machine-to-machie (‘M2M') markets, including many fast devefoping areas such ag smart water metenng,
where we've recently won a contract with Thames Waler, smart gnds and a wide set of other potental M2M
apphecations, including the Internet of Things {'1oT")

With our posihon as the sole UK provider of network access and transmission services for terresinal television and
racdio broadcasting we work with major broadcasters, such as the BBC, ITV and Sky, as well as indepandent radio
groups We are the market leader for commercial spectrum used for transmission of Digital Terrestnal Television
(DTT), owning two of the three man national commercial multiplexes as well as two new, high definiton (HD')
enabled multiplexes

We are the largest independent provider of wireless
lower sites in the UK to Mobile Network Operators
('MNOs"), and are currently helping them to dehver the
roll-out of 4G network capability Argiva is also one of the
largest providers of WiFi in the UK with circa 29,000
deployed access points

We also have a presence In mainland Europe, USA and
Asia We provide satellite distnbution services for Turner
Broadcastirig System, Inc in both the US and Hong
Kong, for France's leading media company Canal+
Group and our digital and satellite TV services keep the
news flowing for the internationally renowned Al Jazeera
Neiwork

We are the company that enables tefevisions, radios, mobiles and ather devices to receive and transmit data Always
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Chairman’s statement

Having joined the Group as Charman in Apnl, I'm delighted
to announce that the Group has recorded its highest ever
revenue and earmings | would like to thank Peter Shore,
who was Chaiman for more than 8 years, for his
commitment to Arqiva over a penod of substanbial growth
and important milestones (ncluding Digital Switch-Over,
the largest engineenng project n the history of UK
televimion) which has made Arqiva the organisation it is
today with exciting prospects for the future For example, in
the March 2015 budget we have seen the UK Government
announce funding for markets linked to machme-to-
machine connectvity and substantial funding to deliver
clearance of the 700MHz spectrum, providing a positive
outlook for the future

In order to be successful in secunng and delivermng these
opporiunthas the Group has sought to re-balance its focus
towards investment in core markets and to identify
opportunities for divestment of certain activities that lack
the scale and strategic fit to the future of the business

Strategic planning

“Our strategic planning process has left
us with a clear view of our core marhets
in which we will focus investment as we
deliver our substantial order book ™

In March 2015 the Group announced to its stakeholders
that it had undertaken a review of its operating model,
working with external consultants to benchmark its cost
base and review the profitability of its service offening

Followming this review, the Group Is seeking to facus on is
most significant growth opportunities whilst at the same
time targeting operational efficiencies, including aligning
actviies from s Technology business umt and Digital
Platiorms business unit into the remaining customer-facing
business unils Addittonally, from the 1% October, the
Group will combine i1s Telecoms and Smart M2M business
units to benefit from the synergies in operations and
markets The Board 15 also ¢consulting with members of the
defined benefit pension scheme regarding closmg the
scheme to future accrual, with an estimated closure date of
31" Oclober 2015 The process remains ongomng at this
time

Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited

With the appontment of an ntenm Chief
Transformation Officer in May 2015, the Board has
shown its commiment to embedding the
transformation programme across the business
These changes are anticipated to deliver in excess of
£30m annual operating cash savings phased over 2-
3 years and will enable Argiva to provide high quality
service to its customers with a more efficient cost
base

Financial results

“Following a year of record revenue aml
earnings we are alrecady beginaing to see
the positive wmpact of the Group's
transformation programme.”

The Group's trading perfomance has been strong,
recording our highest ever revenues of £857 1m and
EBITDA" of £418 7m, both up more than 3% from the
prior year

Growth in Telecoms revenues was achieved prnmanly
through an increase n demand for upgrading
networks {o accommodate 4G capabilty on our sites
There was siso growth 1n underlyng Digital
Terrestrial Telewision ('DTT) contract revenues
followtng 8 renewal of founder contracts upfifted to
market pnces Satelite and Media revenues,
however, declined from the prior year following the
reduchion in wholesale satelite space revenue, some
service terminations of non-credt worthy customers
and space segment terminatons as we focus on
profitability

Operatronal delivery

The Group has continued to deliver across a number
of large-scale projects, including Smart Matenng
which has now reached the 60% coverage milestone
(see p23) Leveraging from our capabilities i the
Machine-to-Machine connectivity markst we have
rolled out the Sigfox loT networks to 10 maor ciies
and are focusing on activities to bring the network to
operational and commercial readiness whilst running
proof of concepts with a number of potental
custormers Under the BBC New Radic Agreement
DAB roll-oul has been progressmg with UK coverage
now Increased beyond 85% and we have also begun
the rollout for a second national DAB service to go
live by March 2016 Within Telecoms, the Group has
progressed 1 its delivery of the Mobile Infrastruciure
Project with 181 sies in the acquisiion phase,
fogether with 19 in the build phase
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Key contract wins

“We acknowledge the challenges we face
in  competttive  markets  but  take
assurance from our continued bid success
and notable wins.”

Duning the year, Argiva won a number of competitive bids
across a vanety of its markets including

- Winnng a smart water melering contract with
Thames Water to build and operate & network,
expected to eventually service over 3 million
homes leveraging the knowledge and success
demonstrated to date on the smar energy
melering pragramme

- Sound Digital, a consortium in which Argiva bolds
a 40% stake, winrung a 12-year licence to operate
the UK's second commercial DAB multiplex
adding significantly to the Group's presence n the
digital radio market

- Winning a 5-year contract to provide WiFl services
(corporate and public access) to a leading
financial Insttutton reprasenting the Group's
largest WiF) contract to date and contributing
significantly to the WiFi growth strategy

- Signing a three year contract to provide wholesale
WiFi services to a Mobile Virtual Network Operator
(MVNO'), which s one of the UK's major
providers of fixed broadband, providing therr
customers with access to the majonty of Argiva’s
Wholesale WiFi locations wia smartphone and
other wireless devices

- Leveraging the development of our Connected
Solutions offering by winning the contracl to
provide engmeerng experise supparting the
rollout of Freeview Play which will provide intemet
connechvily to Freaview television platform

The Group's contracted orderbook value at 30 June 2015
was £6 3bn (2014 £6 3bn) The strength in the order book
underhnes Arqwa’s strong wisibility of earrings and wall
underpin future revenue,

Chief Executive Dfficar and the Board of Directors
Following four and a half years as Chief Executive, John
Cresswell left the business In August, with Simon
Beresford-Wylie becoming the Group's new Chief
Executive Simon joins us with over 30 years' expenence in
the information technology, smart metenng and telecoms
sectors He has held roles all over the world, most recently
helping guide the strategy and operations of Samsung
Electronics' network business in Seoul, South Korea Pror
to joining Samsung, Simon was CEO of UK-based Digital
Mobile Spectrum Limited — also known as At800 - which is
responsible for mitigating interference 1ssues thal anse as a
consequence of the co-existence of DTT television and 4G
mobile

| would ke to take this opportunity to thank John for the
dedication he has shown and the contribution he has made
to Arqiva and wish i well for the future He has helped
posiion Arqiva at the centre of the UK communications
infrastructure industry

it 1s with deep sadness that | have to announce that one of
our Arqiva Board members, Peter Douglas, passed away m
August. Peter had been pant of the orgamisaton {and its
predecessors) for mare than 40 years, and his wide and

Amgtva Broadcast Holdings Limited

detailed knowledge of the business, coupled with his
persuasive and straighforward management style
commanded respect and admiration from those that
worked with him Peter’s personal coninbution to the
growth and success of Asqiva 1s unparalleled and, on
behalf of the company | send my best wishes to
Peter's family at this time

Outlook

Looking forward, Arqwva will continue to make
progress ont s business transformation programme
and will continue to pursue its strategic objective of
growing both a financially and operationally
succassful  business We have signed some
signdficant contracts which have continued to
strengthen our order book and underpin our revenue
into the next financial year

Whilst we shall continue to invest signilicant capital
over the coming years the Board remains focused on
Investing In areas that defiver meaningful earnings
growth

We cantinue to work with the key siakeholders in our
industries, ncluding government and regulatory
bodies, to maintain our excellent relationships and
ensure that Arqiva remains an active particpant in
shaping key decisions, and influencing trends in our
markets

In particular, Arglva continues te engage with Ofcom
and other wtntematonal govermment agencies to
Influence the decisions made regarding the future
use of spectrum  This is with a view lo ensunng the
optmal allocabion of spectrum 1s reached across our
markets, and to enhance free-to-air broadcasting
Where changes to spectrum allocatron are required
such as 700MHz clearance, we expecl lo benefit
from significant project engineenng opportunities

Argive has made excellent progress towards its goals
in this financial year and, with further business
transformation, the Group wiil be looking to continue
that progress in the coming financlal year

bndo—

Mike Parton
Chalrman
September 2015
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Strategic overview

Our stralegy is fo leverage existing skifls and infrastructure to build on our stable core

infrastructure business

The Group intends to continue to operale and invest in UK communications infrastructure, maximising the value of
the core business and to explore appropnale growth opportunities that represent a strategic fit with our exsting
business and infrastructure assets

Our slrategy 1s summansed by three key strategic prnonties which are built on our vision and core values We
actively engage with government, Irade associations and other Industry players as we know that to keep our
customers connected we must continually work to entify and develop the deas that will enable society’s wireless
digita! future

Cur vision is the statement of our
ambition for the future to be central to
every wvital connection that people
make, every day

Our core values guide how we work
togethar and work with our customers

- We look for ingenious ways

to support our customers,

embracing change and fresh

thinking to find solubtons that

add real value,
We connect ! - We work with each other and
people for our  customers mn 3
an enriched straightforwmard way to
and safer life ; ensure thal we are always

effective and understood, we
keep things sumple end clear
and act vath integrity, and

- We bnng experhise and
passion to collaborative
working to provide a cohesive
service o our customers

Qur three strategic priorities are
- Growmg a financlally
successful business,
- Helping our  custorners
prosper and succeed, and
- Beng 2 greal place to work

The key steps management are taking lo execute our strategy are as follows

Investing in new machine-lo-machine connechivity markets that leverage our existng skills and
infrastructure Having secured a major smart electnicity and gas metenng contract for the North of England
and Scolland, we have begun 1o build our customer basa in smart water metenng, sigring a contract with
Thames Water, and have begun developing loT networks for 10 major UK cilies with our partner SIGFOX, a
leading developer of loT technology,

Investing in the growth of mobile data usage by supporting the MNOs in therr roll-out of 4G, and secunng
key contracts to bulld our WiFi presence,

Discussions are currently progressing with the UK Government on its announcemant of the inlention fo
clear the 700MHz specirum and Argiva's involvement in the project,

Investing In the future of DTT by supporting venlures such as YouView, Freeview Play, video on-demand
services and the high defimbion capability on Freeview,

Putting the customer first in all that we do and measunng our success by regular feedback, including the
annual customer angagement survey,

Investing in our people, including malntaming our Investors m Peaple “Gold Award’, and

We belleve In operating in a straightforward way, and therefors we look for continual efficency and cost
base optmisation

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements

Year ended 30 Juna 2015




Qur sirategy to build our stable core business 1s underpinned by the following chjectives
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Over recent years, we have secured scalable growth opportunities 1o leverage our existing infrastructure expertise
and custamer relationships further and increase our cnbical role in the UK's infrastructure network These include
= New uses for existing infrastructure expertise such as smart metenng, loca! TV and WiF) Infrastructure,
= Additonal revenues from new capacry for digital terrestnal television channels driven by advancements in
comprassion technology {1 e increasing the number of video streams or channels per multiplex),
=  Ongoing follout of digital audio broadcashng ((DAB'),
*  asuccessful consortum bid to operate a secand nanonal DAB multipiex,
s The UK Budget announcement in March 2015 stated that up to £600m wit be aliocated to deliver the
700MHz specirum clearance programme which Argiva expects to be instrumental to the delivery of,
* Increasing demand for wireless sde capacity dnven by the trend In increasing mobile data usage and
continued roll out of 3G and 4G mobile networks, and
*  Securng additonal contracts in market growth areas, e g machine-to-machine connechvity

We continue to support and sponsor key industry initiatives designed to strengthen the media and communications
sector In recent years we have, on a number of occasions, been the headline sponsors of the Bntish Academy of
Film & Television Aris ('BAFTA’) Telewsion Awards We also continue our long-term sponsorship of the Arqva
Commercial Radio Awards, the UK's biggest annual celebralion of commercial radio

2015 review of the operating modet

In March 2015, the Group announced that it had undertaken a review of its operating model, working with extemal
consuitants lo benchmark its cost base and review the profitability of s services As a result of the review, we have
made the following changes
« Focusing on larger scale growth opportunites and ceasing investment in Secure Solutions and Satalite
News Gathenng ('SNG') The SNG assets were disposed of in July 2015,
« Improvement of the end to end alignment of the business

o From 1 July 2015, actwvities from the Technology business umt were transferred into customer facing
business units and the DTT element of Digital Platforms was transferred to Terrestnal Broadcast and
hybnd TV activities {connected solutions) Into Satelite and Media Owing to this alignment, the posts
of Chief Technology Officer and Managmng Director, Dhgital Platforms have been remaved,

& From 1 October 2015, the Telecoms and Smart Metenng M2M business units will be combined into
ong division, to be known as Telecoms and M2M Furthermore, the Group Strategy and Business
Development functions will be de-centralised and transferred Inta customer facing dwisions and other
central corporate functions As & consequence, the posls of Group Strategy and Bustness
Development Director and Managing Director, Smart Metering M2M will also be removed

s Improvement of efficency and cost base by nght-sizing the central funchons, and
s Proposing the closure of the defined benefit pension scheme to future accrual from 31* October 2015

In May 2015, an interim Chief Transformation Officer, Adam Bradley was appointed to help drive the changes His
remit 15 t0 enhance the scope, ambiion and urgency of the transformaton programme, embedding the
transformation across all areas of tha business These changes are projected to deliver in excess of £30m annuat
operatmg cash savings, to be phased in over the next 2-3 yaars

Armiva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annual report and consolldated financial statements
Yerr ended 30 Sune 2015
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The outcome of these changes will enable Arqiva to continue 1o deliver a first class service for its customers with a
more efficlent cost base, and to rationalise lts product offenng

Acquisitions and disposals
No acquisilions or disposals occurred dunng the year

As part of the Group's review of its operating model, management identified two non-core areas of the business with
fewer operational synergies and therefore lower margins Management 1s in discussion with third parties as to the
potential sale of these components and contracts which would generate cash for remvestment into higher margin
opporiunilies The completron of these disposals would therefora enhance the future eamings potentia!l of the Group

Business developments

Conliracted ordar book update

The Group's cantracted orderbook value at 30 June 2015 was £6 3bn This remained unchanged from £6 3bn
reported in 30 June 2014 Sinca 30 June 2014 we have recorded a further £0 8bn of new contract wins across the
whole business The strength of the orderbook improves Arqiva’s wvisibility of eamings and will underpin fulure
revenue growth

Smart metenng rollout progress

Argiva is bullding a smart metering communication network for the North of England and Scolland as part of a 15-
year contract signed in September 2013 with the Data and Communications Company (the DCC, a body licensed by
statute)

As the project burld conbinues, the Group has consistently mel its contracted milestones Much of the infrastruclure
needed has already been built and the programme has now entered a phase of pre-integratign testing Network
coverage for the service currently exceeds 60% of the target population, allowing Argiva to recognise revenues and
initiate biling Network coverage is on track to achieve B0% caoverage by the ime the DCC service 1s operationally
live in 2016

In the year ended 30 Jure 2015 the Group recogmised £18 1m of revenue predominantly relating to project
management services including revenue in relation to pregress towards the completion of the DCC design and
development mileslone as part of the construchon of the network infrastructure

Solutlon design Is dependent on certain Industry specifications provided by the Department of Energy and Climate
Change (DECC'}) One such specfication (the Great Britain Companion Specification) has changed matenalty,
causing delay to the overall GB Smart Metenng programme In March 2015, the Secretary of State for DECC
approved revised programme tmescales, which extended the date energy suppliers will connect to the service to
summer 2016 The changes fo scope, iming and commercial terms have been agreed with DCC A phased
approach Is being adopted by DCC o accommodate the assessment and implementation of further changes up to
and beyond operational go-live As a result of the specification changes, Arqiva i1s earning additonal revenues for the
change requests and will see an increase in its contracted orderbook

Smart Water melenng conlract win

In March 2015, Arqwva signed a smari water metenng contract with Thames Waler following a compebtive bidding
process The contract is for the provision of smant water metenng fixed network infrastructure and associated water
meters that enables the collechon, management and transfer of metenng data The contract 1s for a & year term that
1s extendable in periods of 1-3 years up to a tota! of 16 years The servica is expected eventually to cover 3 milon
homes

The Group is currenlly working on two key programme phases for the build of 17 network coverage sites and
interfaces to the customer's systems The firsl phase Is on track for a go-live in September 2015 and the second
phase 1s on track for a go-live In March 2016 Additional phases are expected to be contracted with Thames Water
once the notwork coverage gradually grows Following the receipt of initial purchase orders from Thames Water, the
Group 1s currently contracted to deliver 17 milestones by March 2016 of which #t has delivered five to date, on
schedule

intemet of Things ('1oT)

In Apnl 2014, Argiva signed a deal with SIGFOX, a leading internabonal (0T business o build a national !oT network
on a staged basis, starting with len major UK cities, using SIGFOX technology The programme s now focusing on
actvities to bnng the network to operational and commercial readiness whilst running proof of concepts with a
number of potental clients

Argiva Brogdeast Heldings Limited Annuasl report and consolidated financial statemants
Year ended 10 Juna 2015
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Second national DAB licence win

In March 2015, Sound Digital Limited, a consertium of Argiva (40%), Bauer and UTV Media GB won a 12 year
lcance to operate the second natonal DAB Multiplex following a competitve bidding process The contract
increases Arqiva's orderbook by E34m comprising transmusston fees from lhe share of the joint venture that Argiva
dues not own plus lis share of the tota! services revenues signed to date with radio broadcasters

Sound Digital's planned transrission network is differentiated from the existing national multiplex by its focus on
digrial-only stalions including start-up operalors and new entrants The service will reach natronal population
coverage of 75% using 45 transmitters once fuily commissioned Sound Digital will provide access to 15 new radic
stations including popular brands and there will be capacity for addibonal content prowviders to join the network prior
fo launch The service 1s expected to go hve in March 2016

Digrtal radio (DAB} molfout

The Group has been progressing with the delvery of the DAB rollout programme under the BBC New Radio
Agreement {'NRA"), and has now completed the upgrades to the analogue radio network The build out of the Phase
4 BBC National DAB network continues and as at 30 June 2015, Arqva had put 101 new transmitters on arr
increasing the BBC's UK DAB network coverage beyond 85% of the population By the time the project is completed
in December 2015, the BBC national DAB netwark will reach 97% of the population via a total of 392 transmitters

The Group has also been progressing with the delivery of Commercial local DAB The programme 15 part of an
initiaive to meel the local DAB coverage crtena of 90% as set by the UK Govemment in 2010 The 90% cnterion
was part of three overall cntena to judge when a date for a full national digital radio switchover can be set The
project requires new transmitlers or upgrades at 231 sites and commenced during the 2015 financial year It 1s
partally funded by the BBC and the UK Government

Following award of the second national DAB licence in March 2015 to Sound Digital, a cansorium which includes
Argwva (40%), the Group has commenced construction of the transmission network and sought expressions of
interest from broadeasters wishing to launch further radio services on the new national DAB multiplex Transmitter
nstallatons at 45 sites will commence in Septermber 2015 with commissioming planned for completion by early
February 2016 Since the licence award, new conltracts for radio services have been offered to three broadcasters
with further channels stll in negobiaton  The service remains on schedule to launch in March 2015

OTT spectrum update

The DTT platform currently uses spectrum in the 470-790 MHz bands Plans are being developed by Ofcom and
industry stakeholders to clear 700MHz (684 MHz to 780 MHz) to use for mobile data The Group Is currently
undertaking 2 capability assessment for Ofcom to dentfy the work required to modify the existing DTT network
infrastructure to meet the requrements for the 700MHz Clearance Based on this information the UK Government
has budgeted up lo £800m for the lotal cost of the clearance programme which includes the cost of infrastruciure
changes The funding framework is under development with initral funding requests to be made m autumn 2015 to
cover programme managemen! actvties and on-going technical analysis

in addtion, European Member States have adopted & ‘Mo Change' positon ahead of the World
Radiocommunications Conference {WRC') meeting in November 2015, to ensure that the terrestnal broadcasting
service will reman the principal service th the 470-684MHz frequency range (with the mobile service excluded from
this spectrum} Furthermore, African Member Stales have alsc adopted a ‘No Change' positien ahead of WRG15
which demonsirales a sirong alignment with Europe and mimimises the nsk of a change to the radio regulations at
WRC15

DTT Mutltiplex utirsafion

As at 30 June 2015, all 28 streams on Arqiva's two main DVB-T Muliplexes were fully utiised, following new
contract wins and the renewal of all *founder” streams A strong penod of sales in the year brought a number of new
customers and brands onto the Freeview DTT platform confirming s on-going atiracliveness o broadcasters for
them to obtain the largest possible audiences New channel launches since last summer on the main DVB-T Arqiva
Multiplexes include Quest+1, Mowvies for Men, TruTV, TBN, CBS Action, and TinyPop These renewals and new
channels have added over £300m of contracted revenues to Arqiva's orderbook since 30 June 2014, leading to the
highest aver orderbook figure for the Digital Piatforms division of circa £0 8bn as at 30 June 2015 (2014 £0 3bn)

New DVB-T2 (HD and 5D} Multiplexes

in August 2013, the Group commencad construction of the seventh Freeview Multiplex enabling broadcasts in either
HD or SD tc DVB-T2 equipped devices This was fully commussioned by June 2014, reaching a maximum population
coverage of 72% In March 2015, the switch on of the eighth Freeview Multiplex commenced, alse broadcasting in
HD and SD

The Group has already signed QVC, a home shopping channel which launched two of thewr channets in HO an the
new Multiplex in Apn! 2015 Active discussions are underway with 2 number of Public Service Broadcasters (PSBs')
and commercial broadcasters regarding the carriage of additional channels from their portfolios

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annusl report and consolidoted financlal statemants
Yaar ended 30 June 2015

9




Freeview update

Freeview 1s the UK's biggest digital television provider, delivenng TV content over DTT In June 2014, as part of an
effort to develop the platform further the Freeview consorium announced plans to develop a connected TV service
which will make calch-up and on-demand TV avaidable to a mass market giving viewers even more choice in how
they access TV programmes It has recently been announced that this new service will be called Freeview Play

In November 2014, Argiva's Digital Platforms division was ewarded the contract to bulld Freeview Play's core
infrastructure following a8 competitive selection process by Digital UK The aim 1s for manufacturers to launch a new
range of Freeview Play enabled televisions and boxes which consumers will he able to buy in store Consumers will
be able to watch the service wia their TV seral and current broadband provider withou! being tied te a contract
Arqiva 1s commitied lo ensuring Freeview remains a strong and competitive player in the changing TV landscape

WiFt contract wan in financial services seclor

In March 2015 the Group won a § year contract to prowide WiFI services to a leading financial insttution, which
covers both public and corporate WiF1 (1 @ customer and business use) Under this contract, Arqiva will provide WiFi
services at the Institution’s 700 branches, 19 administrative centres and 2 dala centres

This is the largest WiFt deal to date for the Group in terms of contracted ravenue, and Arqiva's firsl customer in the
financial services sector The opperiuntty establishes the Group's footprnt in this market, contnbuting further to its
WiF1 growth strategy

WiFr and Small Cells development

In June 2015, Arqiva signed a three year contract to provide wholesale WiFI services to one of the UK's major
providers of fixad broadband The service wilt enable their customers to accass the majorty of Argiva's Wholesale
WiF locations via smariphone and other wireless devices The contract is part of the Group's strategy to dnve further
growth from s WiF1 business and strengthen its foothold n this sector

Furthermore, Arqiva has also been developing sts outdoor Small Cells opportunity which 1s a technology that uses
low power base stations to provide streel level network capacily o MNOs, parlicularly in dense urban areas The
Group 1s currently progressing tnal activity with al! four UK MNOs, and parlicipating in commeraal processes to
provide a managed sennace role In this markel

UK MNQ consolidabon, 4G roffout and Mobila Infrastructure Project update

Dunng the year to June 2015 the UK telecoms market saw the announcement of a proposed acquisition of EE by BT
and also @ bid by HIG for Telefonica O2 The impact of any consolidation of Arqva's customers, should the
proposals receve regulatory approvals, remains uncertain and 1s complicated by the MNOs' positions tn the two
major mobife network shanng ventures Both proposed deals would require competiton authornty clearances and
given the likely timescales for a decision, and the complexity of unwinding or reconfigunng network shanng deals,
there 1s unlikely to be a matenal impact on Argiva over the medium term The Group benefits from leng term
contracts and Arqiva's services are in huigh demand, particularly driven by comgpetthon between the custamers,
induding for continued 4G build-out at high pace making use of Argiva's siles The Group wiews the poltential deals
as an opporiunity to be a focal point of any consolidation activity given ds strong site portfolio, existing customer
relationships and previous experience of supporling conschdation

Against the backdrop of consohdation achwity, the four main MNOs are also all increasing thewr 4G network
capabllity Arqiva in tum is being contracted to carry out a large volume of antenna and feader upgrads projects for
its customers The Group 1s therefore reporting a significant increase in Installation Services revenue in the year to
30 June 2015 and continues io expect high levels next year To the end of June 2015 the Group has completed circa
1200 4G upgrades across Argiva managed sites The order book remains healthy as more orders are coming in for
upgrades across our sies, currently we have a further circa 5,600 upgrades to Arqive managed sites requested from
the mobile aperators over the next 2-3 years

The Mobile Infrastructure Project ('MIP') 1s a strategic programme funded by the Government with the ullimate goal
of providing service to areas without any mobile coverage services ('not-spots’) The Group conlinues with the
rollout As at the end of June, 181 sites were in the acquisition phase, together with 19 in the build phase

UK Government funding for 700 MHz and Intemet of Things
tn the UK Budget announcement in March 2015, the Govermnment staled ihat it will aliocate up to £600m to deliver

the 700 MHz spectrum ciearance programme Discussions ere progressing around the grants allocation process to
enable the main programme to commence

The UK technology industry wilf also benefit from a further boost of £140m from the Government to davelop further
loT and smart cities in the UK

The Group Is well positoned 1o benefit from these initatives as it continues to engage with Ofcom to develop plans
for the 700 MHz clearance and as it continues developing its loT propositton
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Appoiniment of new Chaimman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

In Apnl 2015, the Group appointed a new Chairman, Mike Parton Mike will oversee the business on behalf of
Arqwva's shareholders and takes over from Peter Shore who was Chairman of Arqiva from 2007 Mike slaried his
career as a Chartered Management Accountant, working for a number of UK technology compantes ncluding ICL,
GEC, STC and Marconi He moved into General Management in 1995 at Marcon: and became CEO in 2001
Batween 2001 and 2006 Mike was CEO of Marcon before overseeing a sale of the company 1o Encsson in 2008 In
2007, Mike became Chairman of Damovo and joined the Beard of Tele2, becoming Chairman there in 2010 Mike
stepped down from the Board of Damovo in 2015 and joined Argiva shorily afterwards

In August 2015, the Group also appointed a new CEQ, Simon Beresford-Wylie Simon joins Arqiva with over 30
years' experence in the information technology and telecoms sector He has held roles globally, most recently
helping guide the stralegy and operations of Samsung Electronics’ network business in Seoul, Korea Pror to
joming Samsung, Simon was CEO of UK-based Digital Mobile Spectrum Limited (DMSL) which 1s responstble for
mitigating mterference 1ssues that anse as a consequence of the co-existence of DTT televiston and 4G mobile He
has also held positions as CEQ for Elster Group {SE), a German-based suppher of advanced metenng and gas
infraslructure solutons and spent 11 years with Nokia Corparation, iatterly serving on the Group Executive Board
responsible for the Group's Network Business Simon was the founding CEQ of Nckia Stemens Netwarks which
today accounts for around 90% of Nokia's global revenues and profits

After four and @ half years' service as CEO, John Cresswell ieft Arqiva in August afler leading Arqiva through a
penod of sirong EBITDA and orderbock growth
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Our business model

Argiva Is 8 communications infrastructure and media services business, operating at the heart of the broadcast,
satellite and mobile communicalions markets Arqiva I1s also proud to play its part in the developmen! of smart
{machine-to-machine) networks, providing the next generation of ‘smart connectivily’ with the ambition being to
provide advances in operationa! effimency and the qualily of information systems for businesses

We live in an aways on, always connected world Miltons of people depend daly on a continuous streem of
nformation, education, entertainmenl and conversation As more and more individuals, comparnies and public
services organisations seek to connect safely and securely to one another, we aim to be central to every wtal
connection they make Our services already touch the fives of wirtually every person in the UK every day

The Group owns and operales a portfolio of
commurications infrastructure and provides telewsion
and tadio transmission services, tower sile rental to
mobile network operators, media services and radio
commurucations In the United Kingdom (UK) and
overseas

With crca £18bn {net book value) invested in
infrastructure assets Argiva utifises the expertise of its
people {(more than 2,000 employees) to deliver an its
contracls (order book of £63bn} Underpinming this
delivery, the Group holds the necessary hcences to
broadcast - for example the Group holds spectrum
icences for two of the three main nattlonal commercial
digital terrestnal TV multiplexas plus two new Hi-
Defintion-capable ('T2') multiplexes

We invest in our infrastructure to mantamn its rebability, but alse to maximise its potential with the group offering a
wide range of service capahihties including

Broadcast transmission from our towers,
DTT and satellite mulhplexes,

Satellite transmission/play-oul,

Fibre cable conneclions,
Telecommunications,

WiFi connecbivity, and

Smart network connectivity

These service offenngs are ahgned into our business units outined on page 13 Additionally our management
structure 1s gligned to these business units reflecting that, whilst there are common core principles of how we
operate our business, there are nsks that are required to be separately managed, see page 33 for addiional deta:l
We conbnue fo review and adapt our business structure to drive efficiencies and optimise our cost base in 2015,
management announced that it was improving the end-to-end alignment of the business by transfernng certain
actwities that had previously been managed cenlrally into the main business units (see pages 7 and 13 for further
infarmation},

Arqiva's key strengths are its people and expertise, the asset base it has bt up with strategic investment and the
operational icences it has won in highly compatitive bids Arqiva has an unrivalled site portfolio and the capability to
deliver a broad range of services, and therefore holds a strong competitve position across markets, which generally
have high bamers to enlry It 15 with these strengths that Arqiva stnves to delfiver value to customers, by providing a
teliable and comprehensive service, and 1o shareholders through long-term, stable earnings growth
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Our business units

For the year ended 30 June 2015, our business was aligned into the following customer-facing business units

{1

-
L=

® @00

Terrestrial Broadcast s the sole provides of transmission services and infrastructurs for all UK terrestal
TV breadcasters including BBC, ITV and C4, who reach 20 million homes and cover 98 5% of the UK populalion 1t
also owns and operates over 90% of the radio tranamission towers for terrestnal broadcasting in the UK and Is the
operatar of both commercial national digitat radio multiplaxes

Digital Platforms owns and cperates wo of the three mam national commercial digtal tarrestnal TV
multiplexes (out of a total of six multiplexas, ingluding Pubiic Service Broadcasters), plus two DV3-T2 multiplexes
{for additional services including HO on Freeviaw), used for transmussion of DTT services m the UK Digral
Platforms enables major media companies to bring thelr TV and radio services to 20 million homes with access to
the Freeview platform

Satellite and Media owns and operates teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as owming &n
international terrestnal fibre network, media facllities and leasing sateliite capacity These enable the Group to
provide customers with a comprehensive range of servicas to deliver thair data, droadcasts and media services
mtarnatianally

Telecoms service the mobris communications, public safety, local govemment and commercial markets Argiva
s the largest independent ste share provider in the UK, offanng licences to national MNOs and other wirelass
network operalors With lts own specirum, the Group has lhe strategic capability to provide complete mobile
communications networks mcluding backhau! links Tha Group's WiF infrastructure bustness Is one of the UK's
largest providers of WiFi access points

Smart Metering/Machine to Machine (‘Smart Metering M2M’) was set up to buid on
Amlva's success it winming the 15 year smart metering contract in the North of England and Scotland and to
pursue the wider apportunities in this space The smart metenng contract invalves building a new sman network
and delivering the smart energy metenng communications service for Scotland and the north of England, as well as
managing engagement with the energy industry and other key stakeholders The business unit s pursuing new
business opportuaibies in relaled smart and M2M markels, including many fast developing areas such as smart
waler metenng, smart grids and a wide set of othar polential M2M appllcatiens, including the ioT

Supported by the following centraliged functions

® ®

Central Corporate functions compnse Strategy & Business Development, Finance, Legal & Commercial, and
Peop'e & Orgarusation

the Technology division supports the operational infrastructure, inciudmg monitoring 2nd mantenanca
senvices for the whole of the Group, thelr focus being on seivice, efficiency and new technalogy

Dunng the year, management conducted a review of the operating mode! of the business and identified benefits from
the combsnation of elements of the Digital Platforms unit with that of Temestrial Broadcast, and with Satelite and
Media The resull is 2 single Terresinal Broadeast business unlt which combines the ownerstiup of multiplexes and
the infrastructure for transmission alongside a grealer service offening under a simgle Satelite and Media business

unit

In a continuation of the strategy to vertically align aur cenlral services we are integrabing the Technology dwisian into
the business units lo the extent that support activities were directly attnbutable Some services will be Integrated into
the ceniral corporate function where they are indirectly attributable to a number of business units
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The recrganisation was effective as of 1 July 2015 to commence operating under a structure with four customer-
facing businass units (Terrestnal Broadcasl, Telecoms, Satellite and Media and Smart Metenng M2M) supported by
a single, central corporate funchion

Dugital Platforms (to be fully integrated)
2014 37 peopla

2015 47 paopi
% & )
- SN
Terrestrial Broadcast to r A
nclude ownership end operation of . Satellite and Media to include our
the Group's nabonal commercal (‘. ,) connected solutions  business  stream
digital terrestnal TV muttiplexes and supporting our media sarvices delvery
DVB-T2 mulliplaxes providng a
singlte complals service 2014 361 people
2014 550 pecpls 2015 377 people
2015 551 :eoph 201&° 298 paople
2016" 846 people ro =
If \ , /’ p 1
N s
- 1
Key.
o ¢ 5 Re-shgnment af
Q. , ¥ employees
i L— 3 Merger Inta
Central functions (including =  Telacoms and
Technoalogy) M2M (effective 1
QOctaber 2015)
2014 850 psople (inc 385 people within Technotogy) j

2015 891 peopla (inc 402 peopla within Techrology)
2018* 524 people

o <
. ’ N N

A F
lw——-——-l—l————————-——————-——-‘
' ]
| |
|
l Telecoms Smart Metering M2M I

i 2014 3485 people 2014 39 people

2015 421 pecple 2015 73 people |
i 2016 498 people 2018" 96 peaple I

* represents the number of peaple sligned to each unit effechve from 1 July 2015
** includes total number of paople within the existing corporate function and technology division as at 30 June 2015

Subsequent to the year end tn August 2015 the Group announced that Smart Metenng M2M would be merged with
Telecoms into a single business umil, to be known as Telecoms and M2M  This move will deliver synergtes with bath
businesses offenng solulions 1o an increasmgly shared custormer base, and cloud, IP and software defined networks
will accelerate the convergence of communicalions and connected dewvice technologies

Addiionally the Group announced that Group Strategy and Business Development will be decentralised into other
parts of the business, including our customer facing business units  This move will help to ensure our strategy 1s
firmly grounded in our delivery capability and that our markeling 15 best akgned with sales actwvity and customer
requirements These changes will be effective from 1 October 2015
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Financial review

Financial highlights
s Revenue up 3 8% to £857 tm

¢ EBITDAup 3 0% to £418 7m

+  Profit before tax and interest £98 Om (2014 £121 0m)

«  Operating cash flow up 11 1% 10 E380 'm

« Net cash outflow on capital expenditure up 33 6% to £194 9m
Group results

For the year ended 30 June 2015, revenue for the Group was £857 1m, an Increase of 3 8% from £825 6m i the
pnor year There was continued growth in Telecoms revenues refating to a significant increase In installalion
services connected with the upgrading of networks for 4G, growth within WiFi and other one-off project revenues
ralating to sile-share Growth was also seen within Digital Platforms which was dnven by the increased run rate from
addiionat channel capacity available as a resuit of improved compression technology and new T2 multiplex capaclty
together with contract renewals of founder customer deals In Smart Metenng, the Group saw addihonal ravenues as
a result of the continued solution design work, and custemer billing has now commenced following the achievement
of two major network coverage milestones In Salellite and Media, overall revenues declined as a reduction in low-
margin wholesale space revenues, service tarminations of non-credit worthy UK DTH customers and space segment
terminations within a number of Managed Networks conlracts more than offset growth in other areas

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA') for the Group was £418 7m, representing a
3 0% ncrease from £406 6m in the pror year The cument year benefits from the gross profit on the increased
revenues discussed zbove and lower operating costs Operating cos!s reduced due o an ingrease in the level of
internal rasource employed on billable projects which is cost that 1s transferred out of operating costs into cost of
sales In addion, higher labour capstalisation and nitial savings denved from the operating model review reduced
oparatng costs further which was parhally offset by an increase n staff costs The table below provides a
reconcilration of the movements between EBITDA and aperating profit

Recenciliation of EBITDA to operating profit
A reconciiation of the reported EBITDA to the financial statements ts provided betow

Year ended Yoar snded Year anded Year snded Year anded

10 June 2015 30 June 2014 30June 243 30Jume 2042 30 June 204t

©'m £m £'m £'m E'm

Operating profit before exceplional tlems 1396 126 1 1514 1475 1030

Depreciation of fixed assets 197 1226 1059 94 1 892

Impairment of non-current assets - - - 56 -

Amortisation 1589 15877 1591 1552 1554
Other (including loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed

assels and non mterest finance costs princtpally 05 02 02 (12) 01

bank charges)
EBITDA 4187 406 6 416 6 401 2 47 7

Profit on ordinary activities before laxation and interest for the Group was £98 Om, representing a 19 0% decrease
from £121 Om n the pnor year This was pnmarnly driven by the recognition of impaiment offset by additional
EBITDA generated in the year The loss for the financial year was £566 2m, compared to a £503 7m loss in the prior
year This was after non-cash charges of £764 6m (2014 £696 8m)

Non-cash charges 2015 2014
E'm £'m
Accrued nterest on shareholder ioan 244 8 2152
ngtes
Depreciation 1187 1226
Amortisation 158 9 1577
Exceptional impairment 37 -
Exceptionsl financing costs 1005 1123
De-recognition of deferred tax 566 -
Other  accrued interest payable and 504 880
similar charges
Total 764 8 696 8

The Group recogrsed £144 9m net (2014 £120 5m) of excepticnal costs in the year This was pnmanly due to
financing costs (£100 5m) incurred through restructunng interest rate swaps as part of the Group's strategy to
replace its 3-year and 5-year term facilites with a vanety of longer-term loans and bonds (see note 4 to the financia!

Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limitad Annual report and consolldatad financlal statemants
Year ended 30 Juna 2015
15




statements for further details), and reorganisation costs as a result of the raview of the operating model Impairment
of £33 7m (2014 Enil) relates to tha write down of carrying value of non-core business areas and invesiments

Cash flow
Net cash inflow from operating actvities was £380 1m (2014 £342.1m) representing an increase of 11 1% The
increase was principally as a resufl of addiional EBITDA generated and timing differences impacting working capttal

The Group's net cash outflow on caprtal expendidure was £184 9m compared to £145 9m in the pnar year (an
inciease of 336%) The increase was pnmanly due to the phasing of expandiure on project spend relating to the
Smart contract

Gross debt

In February 2013, the Group completed s refinancing raising funds frem both bank facilities and bond markets of
same £2 8bn in total In 2014, the Group refinanced a further tranche of medium-term bank facilties (£532 5my)
replacing them with new long-term deb! instruments (£534 Om) in July 2014, a further E300 Om of the remaming 5-
year faciity was repaid following a new 15-year US Pnivate Placement debl issue {(within Argiva PP Financing Plc, a
subsidiary financing vehicle) which raised £300 Om Following this repayment, only £353 5m of the onginal £1 6bn 3
and § year bank debt borrowed in February 2013 remains

At 30 June 2015 the Group's financing compnsed
Notes to the
HOERTAF]]
slalements

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
E'm £'m

Sharshalder financing®

Shareholder equity (share capital

and share premium) 19,20 993 995
Shareholder [pan notes 17 1,273_3 12738
Total shareholder financing 2.253_ 3 . 22433
8ank loana

Senior term debt (incleding £353 5m 17 7235 10235
{2014 £653 5m) relating to the 5-

year facility)

Other loans

Senior bonds 17 16125 1,3125
Total senior* debt ) 23360 23360
Juhlor bonds 17 G000 6000
Total junlor™ debt 2,936 0 2,816 0
Facilities drawn down 17 1207 0B
Ftnance lease obligations 16,17 138 140
Premium on Swap Issuance 16,17 180 6 10386
Totat 55024 5,297 4

*Represents finance providad by the shareholders of ABHL (see page 30)

**Senior level debt refers to the Group's financing up lo, and including the consohdated Argiva Group Parent
Limited {"AGPL’) group, whilst junior level debt refers to the Group's financing up fo, and including, the
consolidated Angiva Broadcast Parent Limited ({ABPL'} group

The Group holds interest rale swaps (nomina! value £1,023 2m) and inflation-hnked swaps (nomunal value of
£1,312 5m) 1 order to hedge ds interast rate and inflation exposure The Group maintains a hedging policy to
manage intarest rate nsk and to ensure the cerdamnty of fulure interest cash flows Argwva's interest rate swaps
convert vanable rate debt interest costs to fixed rate debt interast costs while inflation swaps cenvert fixed interest
cosis to RPI-linked costs, which fluctuate in ine with the RPI index, as do a significant proportion of the Group's
revenue contracts As a result of the July 2014 debl ssue, £300 Om of Interest rate swaps were broken (incumng
break costs of £100 Sm) and replaced with new swaps (generating a premmium of £100 5m) i order to match the
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matunty profile of the replacement debt Further details of the transactions entered into dunng the year, their basis
and strategy for use is detaited within note 17 to the consohdatled financial statements

Argiva's financing has certain financial covenants altached, principally an interest cover ratia and a debt leverage
ratio which are tested bi-annually in December and June The Group’s fixed and other assets have been pledged as
secunty under the terms of the Group's externa! debt facilites (see note 26)

The Group continues to camply with all financial covenant requirements including the followng histonc covenant ratio
requirements

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Covenant ratios ~ senlor debt leve!

Maximum alfowed ratio of net debt to EBITDA 750 750
Actual ratio of net debt to EBITDA 574 577
Minimum allowed ratio of EBITDA to interest 155 155
Actual ratic of EBITDA to interest 235 227
Covanant raties - junior debt favel

Maxitmum allowed ratio of net debt to EBITDA B 50 850
Actual ratio of net debl 1o EBITDA 710 713
Minimum allowed raho of EBITDA to interast 150 150
Actual ratio of EBITDA to interest 176 170

Maturity profile of gross debt
The maturity profile of gross debt excluding shareholder financing is as follows

. E'm) ;
1000 i
i 800 } - . .
]
a Senior bonds

600 |
Senior term debt |

400 - - -
X Junior bond ’
200 4 é
_ ; !
0 @

<2 years 2-4 years 5.9 years 10-15 years  16-20 years

L - - — —_——— - - - — PR
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included within the 2-4 year calegory is the Group's 5-year term loan facility (borrowed by Argiva Senior Finance
Limited, a group undertaking) which matures i February 2018, and the jumor bond (issued by Arqiva Broadcast
Finance Plc, a group undertaking) which matures in March 2020

The Group lasl undertock a significant re-financing exercise in February 2013 and since then has continued to re-
finance elements of its debt structure further extending its matunty profile Dunng the year the Group raised £300 Om
of US Pnivate Placement Debt with an end matunty dale of 2029 to replage £300 Om sentor term debt with an end
matunty of 2018 As a result of these actwities 1n recent years, the weighted average life of gross debt has tracked
as follows

Date Weighted average life
of gross debt

February 2013 | 6 2 years
June 2013 8 9 vears
June 2014 7 5years
June 2015 7 4 yaars

The Group's senior honds are currently rated as BB8 by both Fitch and S&P
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Liquidity

To ensure it has sufficient avallable funds for working capital requirements and planned growth, the Group maintams
cash reserves and access to undrawn committed faciies to cover forecast requirements The Group carefully
manages the credit nsk on hqutd funds and denvative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a
range of major financial insktulions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by intemational credit rating
agencies The levels of credit nsk are monitored through the Group's on-going nsk management processes, which
inciucde a regular review of counterparty credit ratings  Risk in this area is imited further by setting a maximum leve!
and term for depostts with any single counterparty

As at 30 June 2015, the Group has a £400 Om capital expenditure facility against which it has drawn £120 Om (2014
£nil), end £100 Om of undrawn working capital facilities 10 cover short term cash flow timing differences if required In
addition, the Group has £200 Om of hquidity facilities available to cover senior interest payments and a £28 5m cash
reserve to cover one junror interest payment if requrred

In order to support the Group's smarl metening contract, in the prior year, we estabiished two further faciities n
Arqiva Smart Financing Lirmited ('ASFL’), 2 Group company thal sits outside the man Whole Business Secunlisabon
(‘WBS) financng Group The Comms Hub Recenables Purchasing { CHuRP'} facility aliows the Group to borrow up
to £30 Om and the Fee Facilty allows the Group to borrow up to £1 6m At 30 June 2015 a balance of £0 7m (2014
£0 5m) has been drawn against the fee facility, this foan has flosting interest rates of LIBOR + 1 20% and 15 fully
repayable on 30 Jung 2017 There were no drawdowns on the CHURP faciity as at 30 June 2015, this loan has
floaling inlerest rates which range from LIBOR + 1 20% to LIBOR + 1 75% durning the mbat s years of the facihty,
increasing to LIBOR + 2 50% at the end of the agreement in June 2026

Further details of the Group’s debt facilittes are given m note 17 to the financial statements

Going concemn

This strategic report includes information on the stiucture of the business, our business environment, financial review
for the year and details of the pnncipal nsks and unceriainties facing the Group Notes 15 and 17 of the consolidated
financial statements include information on the Group's cash, borrowings and denvatives, and financial sk
management information 1s presented within the Direclors report

On a consolidated basis the Group continues o present net ialfities however it represents the conbinued mvestment
required to support the delivery of the Group's existing and future order book (2015 £8 3bn, 2014 £6 3bn) The
Group completed a refinancing exercise in 2013 and since then has further extended the matunty profile of its debt
{o have a weighted average lfe of 7 4 years (2014 7 5 years, 2013 69 years) The Group had a net cash inflow
from operating activibies of £380 1m In the year (2014 £342 1m) The Company IS In & net asset postion of
£1,768 Om {2014 £1,768 8m)

The directors have considered the Group's profit and cash flow forecasts alongside the Group’s current funding
requirements and faciities available to the Group to ensure 1t can continue for the foreseesble future The directors
continue to be confident that the Group will have adequale resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and consequently adopt a going concem basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements
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@) | Spotlight: Terrestrial Broadcast

Services defivered

Our Temesinal Broadcast business unit (headed by Steve

Holebrook) provides transmission services and infrastructure

for all ferrestnal TV broadcasters and more than 80% of the 41 1,180 rv 98.5% ur
UK's radio transmission, ncluding ownership of the two braadeastowers pooulanen roverage
commercial national digdal radio mulliplexes

The Group’s radic and TV broadcast operations {network ~
access and managed transmission) are regulated by Ofcom 1,450 220 +1bn wens o
on behalf of the wholesale broadcast customers, None of hARS7RISEIoN S20eS =/ radn stermy v exk

the Group's other business units are regulated

Business unit snapshot

Revenue

1
'
]
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i
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i
1 © 2013
, ;

] ] 02014
X | w2015
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Headcount

e B il

S . .

b

Revenues reduced shghtly in 2015 foliowing significant one-off project revenues generated in 2013, and to a8 lesser
extent in 2014 from Local TV, other engineering projects and the 800 MHz Clearance programme This reduchon
was partialty ofiset by RPi linked increases on the underying DTT TV and radio transmission contracls The
business has recruited additional headcount to support the delivery of the build phase of the BBC New Radio
Agreement, which will expand the coverage of DAB to 97% of the population by December 2015, and other new
projects including the award of a second national DAB hicence to our joint venture, Sound Eigital Together these
projects will bring addiional channe! capacity in the future

Market snapshot

The Group 1s the sole owner and operator of the UK's nationwide terrestnal TV infrastructure and the major owner
and operator of the UK's radio infrastructure The Group's activibies have been key to the technological evolution
from analogue to digtal based semices and are cnhical to all terrestnal TV and radio broadcasters Qur cuslomers
include BBEG and 1TV as well as a number of independent radio groups The switchover of the UK's terrestnal TV
system to a high power digital transmission service (DSO) together with technological change within the broadcast
indusiry are key markel changes which continue to impact the Group’s existing businesses

The successfut complelion of DSO has demonstrated the capability of the Group to dehver large scale complex
infrastructure projects on time and under budget, and while the construclion of this high power digital network has
been financed by Arqiva it is supported by long term contracts with key broadcasters, including the BRC, that have
more than 15 years to run and contrbute around £3 bilion to the contracted forward order book of the Group

The Group has remained at the forefront of new developments m UK broadeasting In March 2015, Arqiva was part
of a successful consorbum bid to operate the second DAB muttiplex for the UK as the digital radio market expands
As part of the 'New Radio Agreemanl’ signed in 2014 the Group has conbtnued to increase DAB coverage to
strengthen DAB as a platform for the future, ahead of the potent:al switch over from analogue radio  The Group Is
currenlly underiaking a capabilly assessment for Ofcom to identify the work required to modify the existing DTT
nefwork nfrastructure to meet the requirements for the 700MHz Clearance Based on this information the UK
Government has budgeted up to £600m far the tolai cost of the clearance programme which includes the cost of
infrastructure changes The funding framework 1s under development with initial funding requests lo be made n
autumn 2015 to cover programme management activities and on-going technical analysis

Arglva Brozdcast Hotdings Limited Annual roport and consolidated financisl statements
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l . ! Spotlight: Digital Platforms
[

Services defivered

Our Digital Platforms bustness, now (from 1 July 2015) part of Terrestnal Broadcast,

Headcount

owns and operates two of the three main natonal commercial digdal terrestnal TV .:D M4 riutap oo
multiplexes, plus two DVB-T2 muihplexes (capable of providing addiional services  \~ ) Heanies
including HD content) Digtal Platforms works with major media companies to bning e
therr TV and radia senaces (o viewers via the Freeview platform
1stor
IF el
Busmness unit snapshot
2013 |
a2014
02015 |
|
!
f

Revenues were 12% up from the prior year principzally as a result of founder contract renewals being uplified to
market pnces Advances i compression technology and two new T2 mulliplexes have allowed the Group to
generate additional revenues from addimonal digital terrestnal TV channels in FY15, headcount Increased following
the acquisition of Capablue Limited to support our connected solutions service offering

Market snapshot

Argiva has continued to run at high levels of channel utilisabon with custorners including Sky, Film4 and UKTV
Contracts vary in length but are usually between three and five years duraton Advancements in compression
technology (1 e increasing the number of video streams, or channels, per multiplex) continue to provide opportunities
for additonal revenues from new capacity for digital terrestrial TV channels, with more than £200m of contracted
revenues being added/renewed n the year

The DTT platfarm currently uses spectrum in the 470-790 MHz bands with plans being developed to clear 700MHz
(594 MHz to 780 MHz) to use for mobile data Major Eurcpean Nations {fourteen In total including the UK, France,
Span and Haly) and a recen! consuliation prepared by European Member States and the European Commission In
November 2014 support a European comman proposal 1o ensure that there is no change to the existing regulatory
arrangements for terrestnal broadcast spactrum in the 470-694 MHz range The proposal ts to reserve this range for
terrestnal broadcast use and continue to exclude mobile senaces in this band across Europe This 15 the posibon that
the Group anticipates Europe collectively will align behind at the World Radiccommunications Cenference (WRC)
meehng in November 2015

Follawing the acguisition of Capablue Limied m February 2014, we have created the first IP capable DTT platform
becoming the only provider with the capabiity to offer hnear and non-linear video distribution across DTT, Sateliite
Direct to Home and via the Internel From 1 July 2015, the ‘connected solubons' offenng has been mcomorated
within our Satellile and Media business unit to respond to the converging of tachnologies in the market

Arqlva Broadcast Hoidings Limited Annual report and consolidaled financial statemonts
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Spotlight: Satellite and Media

P ey
'
[l

Sarvices delivered

Our Satelite and Media business unid (headed by Dawid Crawford) provides a

range of senaces fo transmit and play-out content around the globe We supply 80 carn statens
satelite space and provide our cusiomers with up-inking and down-linking areessing S0« saraies
services to offer a satellite and fibre distnbution network to distnbute our
customers' data and programmung, including ¢ 50% of all channels on the Sky
platform Our media management services include the play-out of content,
watermarking and advert placemen! Additionally, we are able to offer secure and
rehable sateliite data communications to remote and hostile locations with customis- @ Vi deuirn @ saclr 1
able end-to-end solutlons currently provided to energy companies and defence 5 ixens 2407
organisations

\"5 5 te apnrts
O

We deliver content across 5 continents supported by offices in the US, Europe and Asia for customers such as
Turner Broadcasting and NBC Universal

Business unit snapshot

Revenue
| ! 2013
: = 2014
iHeadcount " 2015
R B [

Revenues have dechined in recent years as a result of the exit of business from the low margin Wholesale Satellite
Space markel, and additionally in the past year as a result of service lerminations of non-credit worthy customers
and space segment terminations withm a number of Managed Networks contracts These reductions were largely
offset by a fall in the cost of sales associated with maintaining satellite capacity Additional focus on capacity
utiisaton and management of the cost-base resulted in improvements in the gross margin percentage and also
timited the impact of revenue reductions on the Group's EBITDA Average headcount increased primanly due to the
expansion of our play-out services within Asia dunng 2014, with the full effect being felt i 2015 Whilst the business
has exited the Whalesale Satellite Space market, this was low margin and iow labour-intensity and therefore did not
have an impact on our headcount

Market snapshot

Arqiva's satellite infrastructure provides high levels of connectivity, reliability and secunty Arqiva owns, manages
and operates teleports and media hubs at key locations, multiplexes and an intemnational fibre network The Group
was proud to receve the 2014 Independent Teleport Operator of the Year award from the World Teleport
Assoclation We are now a four-time recipient of this respected award

In recent years there has been growth in the number of different platforms, imcluding the nse of over-the-top (OTT")
services and Intemet Protocol ('IP') delivered content The broadcast market has, however, seen convergence in
these technologies through, for example, Smant TVs and set-top boxes providing the end-user with a seamless
experience regardless of the delivery method As a result of the operating review carned out dunng the year, Hybnd
TV activities have moved i to the Satellite and Media business unit For satelite, therefore, the amalgamation of
these addiional senvices provides longevily to salelite distnbutton which 1s often thought of as more ‘traditional
television’
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Q Spotlight: Telecoms

- — - E
Services deliverad

Our Telecoms business unit {headed by Nicolas OH) works with national MNOs and 32b
other wireless network operators to enable complete mobile communications networks . n

nRrEf2s ol maiia
mcludlng backhaul links LEAIBISARS A3

We work with major mabile providers such as EE, Vodafone, Teleforuca 02 and H3G to

provide them with access to our masts and towers and to delver equipment upgrades, Tm .

e g for the naticnal rell-aut of 4G SET0 51 it

In additien, the Telecoms business unit manages the Group's WiF) mstructure business

which s ane of the UK's fargest access pomnt providers Including the largest aimport 250,00-!- atper
hotspot provider tevel asseis avalable for

sl cof ~les

Business umit snapshot

Revenue
2013

2014 I

"Headeount 2015

1

[a—

Revenues increased by 11% from the pnor year pnmarily as a result of increased instailation services actwily as the
major MNOs look to accelerate the roll out of 4G capability across our sites Additionally the Group saw growth in its
WiF1 bustness, by signing naw contracts with an MVNO and a financial istitution in the year in the financial services
seclor, n addition there were one-off project revenues within our site share business

Market snapshot

The Group 15 the UK's largest independent provider of towers which are cntical to MNOs' contractual obligations
to provide national coverage Revenue from the Group’s tower portfolio 1s secured by contracts wiih alt of the large
UK mobiie operators  Planning restnctions create high bamers to entry The release of 4G spectrum in 2013 for use |
in the mobile markel 1s also dnving growth in demand

Arqva conbinues to work closely with the MNOs as they seek o reduce their costs by network consolldation The
Group 15 a key suppher mn this market, with long term contracts with ali the UK MNOs We aim 1o ensure we are al
the heart of the mobile operators' consolidation plans Growth in smariphones and mobile enabled devices along
with faster downinad speeds has led o a significant increase in the demand for mobile data services and hence the
demand for WiF1, and in the future, small ceils

The MNO market 1s highly competitive with a recent trand of MNOs seeking to develop a ‘quad-play’ service offenng
{1 e mabile, landiine, television and broadband) This has prompted recent merger and acquisibon activity with BT
Group ennouncing in February 2015 an agreement to acquire EE and Hutchison Group announcing a deal to acquire
02 n the UK to combine with its Three mobile group In both cases a regulatory deeision 1s expacted in March 2016

Recent research predicls that by 2018, WiF1 networks will cairy more than 50% of smariphone and tablet dala traffic,
Argwa has a strong presence in this market and has adopted a wholesale WiF\ strategy, successfully signing up a
major MVNO i 2014 on a volume-order basis |In 2015 the Group signed a three year contract lo provide wholesale
WiFI services this MVNO, who s one of the UK's majer providers of fixed broadband, providing their customers with
access to the majonty of Arqiva's Wholesale WiF1 locations via smartphone and other wireless devices The Group
contnues to work fowards selling WiF1 services to other MNOs and MVNOs
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} @, Spotlight: Smart Metering M2M

|

Services delivered

Cur Smart M2M diviston (headed by Wendy McMillan) was established in

September 2013 when the Group signed a 15 year contract with the Data @ One
of the UK leaders

and Communications Company (DCCY) to prowde smart metering
In smn malering

communications for approximately 8 3m homes and small businesses in
Scotland and northern England Work 15 underway to build the network

required to dehver the service, and all DCC contract milestones due were O nomes

achieved as at 30 Juna 2015 and sl busneses
el L 58 smarl nicters

Additionally the business 18 working In partnershig with SIGFOX to build an suppened by Argva
uitra-narrowband network as demand for machine-to-machine connectivity

grows

Business umt snapshot

i
+
|
! Revenue
u 2014

0w 2015

+

Headcount

! - ~ - = A

Since the award of the contract, Arqiva has consistently met all of its contracted delivery milestones on time and to
the requred qualty Datacenires have been bult and tested and a service management centre has been
established A key 25% network coverage milestone was achieved by 31 December 2014 and the 40% network
coverage was achieved to schedule on 1 Apn! 2015 We have since reached 0% coverage as at the dale of this
report enabling billing to commence Due to custemer delays in finahsing the design specificalions, the Group
accepted a contract vartatron which has revised the timing of the next milestones {including user-acceptance testng)
and provided the Group with a compensation mechanism far the delay-led truncation of the operational phase of the
contract In the year ended 30 June 2015 the Group recognised £18 {m revenue (2014 £12 8m) pnmarly relating to
project management services In relaton to progress towards the completion of the design and development
milestone, as part of the construction of the network infrastructure

Market snapshot

Arqiva I1s continually looking for opportuniies that complement the Smart North contract, and In April 2014 the Group
signed a partnership deal with SIGFOX for which Arqiva will undertake the build of a dedicated ultra-narrowband loT
network The loT netwoark i& designed for ‘machme to machine’ communications and with the market stll in an early
growth slage, there are indications of an increasing momentum with, only recently, the Chancelior's 2015 Budge!
announcing a E£140m invesiment to develop apphcations for this technolegy Furthermore Ofcom have been
championing tnvestment to help make the UK a global lead in loT technolagy With an estimated 40 million devicas
connected 1n the UK, this 1s forecast to increase by 800% by 2022 (Ofcom January 2015 reporf)y Dunng the year the
networks were launched in 10 major UK eitles and discussions with potential customers are conbinuing

In March 2015, Arqwva signed a smart waler metering contract with Thames Water following a competitive bidding
process The contract 15 for the prowision of smart metenng fixed network infrastructure and associated water meters
that enables the collechon, management and transfer of metenng dala The contract 1s far a & year term that 1s
extendable in perfods of 1-3 years up to a total of 16 years The service 15 expected evenlually to cover 3 milhon
homes and the Group has commenced network build as per the customer requirements

Subsequent to the year end i August 2015 the Group announced that Smatt Metenng M2M would be merged with
Tolecoms into a single business unit, ta be known as Telecoms and M2M  This move will deliver synergies with both
busmesses offenng sclutons to an increasingly shared customer base, and cloud, IP and software defined networks
will accelerate the convergence of communications and connecled device technologies
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Key performance indicators

The Group uses a midure of financiat and nonfinancial key performance indicators (KPIs’) to measure progress
agams! our strategic pnenties Our financial KPIs balance short-lerm measures (8 g operating cash flow) with long-
term measures (eg revenue growth, return on fixed assets and underying EBITDA) to deliver value to our
shareholders Non-financial KPis focus on defivery of major project milestones, raising our performance 1o delight
our customers and investing in our people to create a succassful workplace

Stratagic priorities (see page 6)

«  Growng a finsncially successful business (financial success),
s Helping our customers prosper and succeed (our cuslomers), and
s Being a great place to work (our people}

Financial success

Revenue and revenue growth

2011
© 2012
2013
®2014
®2015

2011
2012
02013
m2014
2015

EBITDA

Definition and basls of calculation

EBITDA Is an fmportant measure for the Group reflecting the leval of
business profitablity and cost effiaency — see page 15 for &s reconcliiation

back to operating proft

Rasult

A 4-year annualisad growth rats of 4 8% has been achleved 2013 sawa
high EBITDA dus to high one off praject revenues The Group has
achlaved revenue growth and has continued to review its operating model

to balance cost efficlency with dalvery

Operating cash flow

i- . -
0 100 20Q,,, 300 400

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limfted

Definitton and basis of calculation
Ravenue Is net of value added tax and Is reviewed in accordance wath
amounts presentad as turnover in our financial slatements

Revenua growth is calculated by measuring current and prior year revenue,
excluding materisl ravenue from businesses acquired ar disposed of in thosa
periods

Result
2015 saw tha Group achieve [ts highest ever reported revenue

Folloming completion of the DSO preject n 2012 the Group has continued to
be successfu) in securing key contracts te defver underlying revenue growth
Underlying revenue growth has been achieved, for sxample, due to eddibonal
channel capacity utilisation and renegatiation of Digital Platforms founder
contracis to cument market rates

Addiionally the Group has experienced growth i Telecoms revenues
principslly a9 a resull of grawth In installation services activity as MNOs seek
the upgrading of networks for 4G capabiity, and also Smarn Metering as a
result of the Smart metering contract win

[

320 370 420
{E'm)
2011 2012 = 2013 =2014 ®2015

e —— -

Definition and basiz of calculation

Opareting cash fiow represents the ‘quality’ of eamings generated
by the buslness and Is presanted In accordance with the financial
2011 atstements

- 2012 ! ; Result
A d.year nnuziised growth rate of 6 1% has been acheved

' | Operating cash flow for FY15 is denved fram EBITDA after the
u2013 deduction of £26 7m working captal and £454m exceptional

operating expenditurs

Annual report and consolldated financial statements
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Qur customers

Network availability
Own TV Combined
Multiplox Notwork
Availabllity | Avallability
213 | 99 99% 99 98%
2014 | 99 65% 09 85%
2016 | 99 93% 98 91%

Dehvery on our customer promises

Definitfon and basis of calculgtion
When wa undertake slgnficant engmeering projects, such as netwerk deployment, wa measure our performance on delivery

agalnst the key contractual milestones

Result

Definition and basis of celculation

Wa strive to provide consistently high service lavels and lock to manage and monitor
the totat annual level of network availability acroxs both TV and radio infrastructure as
a percentage across afl multiplexes

Rasult

Through careful management we have consistently been able to achlieve cur target
Despite meeting our target, ngtwork availablidy in 2015 was lowar than In 2014 due to
severs weather conditions In January 2015, particularly in the north of England and
Scotland, which affected a number of transmutting stationa

The Group has continued to mast s contractual milestones on bme and at the required quality and contnues to engage with all
contract stakeholders to meet future milestones This includes
- Completion of tha 80% network coverage milestone on the Smart Matenng M2M contract with Communications Senvice
Provider for the Narth ('CSP North'),
- Finafisabion of the mital implementation protocols miestone on the Thames Water Metenng contract, and
- Completion of 101 new transmitters te increase BBC s UK DAB network coverage beyond §5% of the UK population as

part of the BBC NRA contract

Our people

Investors in people

Dafinition and bas!s of calculation

The Group takes part In tha ‘Investors in People’ accreditabion for which more than 16,000 UK |

businesses take part.

Result

The results of the 2015-18 survey are to be ennounced in 2016, however the Group has 2012-13 1 Siver
malntained s Gold award through 2013-14 and 2014-15 Lass than 4% of partcipants achieve | | 2013-14° | Gaid
|

Gold Standand

Arglva Brosdcast Holdings Limited

Investors’in
people
0P

2014-18 Gold
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Corporate responsibility

Everything we do at Argiva 1s guided by our values to go the extra mule to heip our
customers reach therr customers and audiences At Argiva we wil endeavour to
conduct our business In 3 way that benefits our customers, supphers, employees,
shareholders and the communities in which we operate

We helieve we have a role to play in shaping our dynamic industry

We actively engage with government, trade associstions and other industry players
as we know that to keep our customers connected we must continually work to
identfy and develop the ideas that will enable society’s wireless digital future

Our Purpose is the reason why our business exists and s the difference we are Irying to make for our customers -
Qur purpose is

We connect paople for an ennched and safer hife

Qur Vision s the statement of our ambition for the future — our vision 1s

To be central fo every vital connection people make, every day

Our Values sit at the heart of who we are and what makes us special We believe in three core values where we
aim to be

ingenious we find inganious and smarter ways to support our custamers, we mspire customers and each other, we
embrace change and fresh thinfang, we find solutions that add real value

Straightforward we lalk and act 1 a clear and straightforward way o make sure we are always effechve and
understood, we keep things simple and ciear; we act with infegnly, we are plain speaking and we lisfen

Collaborative we bnng expertise and passion to collaborate as one feam and go that exira mils, we engage widely
and act as one leam, we take personal responsibibty, we buld on our strengths

Environment

The Group 15 committed to complying with all applicable environmental legislation and annually assesses the
environmental impact of its actvities, products and services and aims to reduce any negalwe impacts through active
environment management The Group operates an environmental management system which 1s accredited to the
international standards 15014001 and ISO50001, the latter being the voluntary International Standard for “Energy
Management Systems”

Energy consumplion is a key area of interest for the Group given it 1s a significant consumer of eleclicity  Arqiva
has launched a new energy policy which reflects the company's commitments 1o Impraving energy efficiency by

¢  Reducing energy consumpton,

« Inveshing in energy efficient technology, and

» Monitonng carbon emissions

One of Arqiva's business ams 1s to reduce carbon emissions and energy costs whilst complying with energy
leglsiation We have a dedicated team looking at new and mnovative ways of driving down our carbon footprint
Responsible management of energy has a key role in minumising our environmental impacts and 15 embedded within
our company We are invesltigating how emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help us and our
customers become more enviranmentally friendly As new technologies emerge and legacy equipment 1s replaced
we look for the most environmentally-fnendily ways to dispose of redundant hardware For example, following the
completian of the DSO programme we had to remove and dispose of our analogue telewision infrastructure, and
managed to recycle over 90% of the wasle

The Arqwva energy policy 1s committed lo ensunng we meet, and where possible, exceed the requirements of
epplicable legeslation, policies and other commitments to which we subscribe  All employees are encouraged to
participate In the energy raduction aims of the company, and the Arqva Management Board support the energy
pohey, as well as promoting and maintaining & hgh profile for carbon and energy ssues within the grganisahon

We have achieved year on year energy consumption reductions and continue our efforis to make further reductions
The business aims ta reduce energy consumption by 1% per annum, and as at June 2015, a 0 7% reduchon has
been achieved against pnor year having achieved a considerable reduction n the previous peried (2014 1 9%),
representing an average annual reduchon of 1 3% over the two year penod
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Health and safety

The Group is committed to complying with applicable health and safely legislation, and to conbinual improvement in
achieving a high standard of health, safety and welfare 1n its operations and for all those in the orgarusation and
others who may be affecled by its actwities  The Group operates a safety management system that 1s accredited to
the nternational standard OHSAS18001 The Directors regularly review health and safety reports in relation to the
Group's activities, employees and contractors

Information security
Due to the cntical mportance of our sites and systems 1o the Arqiva Group, our customers and In some cases as
part of the Cntical National Infrastructure, the Group takes information secunty very senously

Last year, Arqiva became the firsl company in the combined Broadcast and Yelecoms industry to achieve 1IS02700Q1
certification for all platfiorms and services {end to end) for all of its UK locatrons  This allows Arqiva to compete for
new business which requires 1ISO270C1 accrediation and we can confidently demonstrate our secunty-conscious
culture and compliance with this intemabionally recogrused standard There are two physical secunity sudits and two
internal secunty audits conducted every month in order to maintan our certification and since certification, we have
passed every audit

Employees
The average number of persons employed by the Group dunng the year was 2,160 (2014 2,002) Argiva recognises
the signficant contnbution of its employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and engaging working
ervironment

The Group's policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees, imespective of race, nationahty, gender,
sexual onentation, mantal status, religion or political befief, disabilty or age

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Durectors and employees

Male Female
Number / (%) Number / (%}
Shareholder Board membership 8/80% 2720%
Management Board membership 9790% 1/10%
Arqiva Group employees 1,682 7 78% 478122%

. Note'
Board mambership refars to the Group s Sharehoider Board (including alternates and non-executives) Semior management refers fo the
Group's Management Board For further defads see page 30

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for employees at all levels within the
orgarisation The Board also reviews future management requirements and succession plans on an ongaing basis

In 2013-14 and 2014-15 Arqiva receved an ‘Investors in People Gold Award' This is the highest level of Investors in
People recogmtion available Achieving the Gold Award Is an outstanding recognittont of the commutment and hard
work put in by many colieagues across the business Arqwa i1s commitied to retaining this award, and will next be
assessed in 2016

Duning the year, the Group was pleased to announce its democratically elected Arqiva Employee Soard ('AEB') The
AEB has been set up to provide 2 voice for employees across Arqiva and provide a clear and direct link between the
Group’s employees and management board The AEB has since mel on a monthly basis to discuss key matiers
such as performance management, or efficiencies and process in order to develop responsive acton plans The
AEB (as well as the Managermen! Board} also interacts with representatives of the Broadcasting, Entertainment,
Cinematograph and Theatre Umien (BECTU') regarding employee matters

The Group's employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective consultalion across the
Group They play an important role in enabling employees fo help the Group manage charnge effectively The goals
of each forum are to act as the formal staff consultative bady for its part of the business within Arqiva, provide a
voice to management on employee issues, inliate and support dwision-wide social activites, and promote
consultatron and shanng of mformation The Group Employee Forum compnses representatives of all the local
forums

Significant emphasis s placed on employee communication The Group intranet ‘Connect’ makes information
available to employees on all matters including company performance, growth, and rssues affecting our industry The
embedded values “ingemous, straightforward, and collabarative — Always", continue to form the fundamental basis of
all Arqiva business conduct and communication  Our quarterly employee magazine - 'IQ" - mcludes business news,
nformation on special projects, paople profifes, environmental and chanty iniatives and compettions

We want all our employees to benefit from our success and growth as a business Our annual bonus scheme
recognises the imporiance of ligh performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
conslantly improving overall performance, in ine with our values The scheme takes into account the targets that
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have been set by the Group and then muitiphes this by a personal performance rating  The company must achieve &
minimum EBITDA before a bonus becames payable which is then calculated bazed upon the Group financial KPls of
EBITDA, revenue and operating cash flow The bonus payment for the 2015 financial year will be made In
September 2015

Charitable donations, community and social activities

Taking a collaborative approach to our work, our people and the communihies in which we operate ts an important
company value for us [It1s one of the reasons why we continue to partner with The Prince's Trust and Walking with
the Wounded ("WWTW') charities

We are continuing to support The Prnce's Trust fundraising efforts, such as the Palace to Palace bike ride i
October 2014, our second year of involvement, whera up to 4,000 people rode from Buckingham Palace to Windsor
Castle Arqva is also a patron of The Pnnce’s Trust  The Prince’s Trust focuses its efforts on helping young people
with prachical and financial support, and developing key workplace skills  Argiva has committed to raising funds for
The Pnnce's Trust ‘Million Makers' challenge There have been a number of fundraising events over the course of
the year with the Trust using amounts raised to invest in @ smalt-scale enterpnse challenge ptting {eams against
each aother across the UK The work of The Prince’s Trust fils perfectly with our purpose, vision and values as its key
aim is o keep young people connectad with society As part of our Corporate Responsibility strategy, we continue to
work with The Pnnce's Trust to help them run programmes that encourage young people to take responsthility for
themselves and help them build the Iife they choose rather than the one they've found themselves with

Dunng the year, the Group made a significant number of chantable donations Contributions were made as partof a
matched funding scheme to match employee fundraising for chantable events up to £500 per employee The Group
also supports the Give As You Earn scheme, working i parinership with the Chanties Aid Foundation which
manages the scheme - the UK's teading payroll gving scheme Employees are supported to take part in corporate
volunteenng actvities whereby they give thewr ime ta local chanttes and arganisations for special projects which has
included numerous activities such as upgrading the garden area al a local educational farm

Global Corporate Chalienge (GCC') Is a wellness programme that encourages partipants to be active over a 100
day peniad, using pedometers lo track daily steps This year, Argiva has 20 teams {made up from 130 employees)
particpating from a number of different locations including a US team They will be joined by over 40,000 other
teams from 1,500 of the world’s largest employers  Arqiva 1s committed to supporting musculoskeletal health, and
this challenge 1s a great activity to strengthen muscles and bones, and reduce the nsk of injury.

Argiva has also demansirated s commitment to promobing heaith and welibeing by launching the ‘Arqiva Be healthy’
programme, aimed at promoting health mitiatives and healthy lifestyle choices In addition, we have entered ‘Britan's
Healthuest Company’ competiion which aims to recognise and reward companies and their employees in their effort
to lead healthier iifestyles

Taxation

Our approach to lax 1s to ensure comphance with all our legal and statutory obligations and how the legislators
intended the laws to be followed We are committed to maintatung a bransparent and constructive working
relalionship with HM Revenue & Customs and with local tax authonties in the junsdichions in which we operale The
total contnbution to UK lax receipts including business rates, tax and NI paid by both Argiva and employees, totalied
£83 1m (2014 £78 6m) for the financial year

The Arqwa Group 15 a pnmarnly UK based nfrastructure group, while there are soms trading operations outside of
the UK these generate only 1% of EBITDA and there are no tax planning actvities undertaken which seek to reduce
the Group's UK prefits or revenues by transfernng revenus or profit out of the UK The Group's small trading entibes
overseas desl direclly with customers In their area of residence and fulfil ther tax requirements 0 the local
junsdictions

This repont was approved by the Board of Directors on | { September 2015 and signed on tts behalf by

o —

Mike Parton
Chairman

| September 2015
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Board of directors

The Company 1s owned by a consortium of sharehalders compnsing Canada Pension Plan Investment Board (48%),
Macquare European Infrastructure Fund Il (25%) plus other Macquane managed funds (1 5%), Health Super
tnvestments Pty Limited (5 5%), Industry Funds Management {14 8%) and the Motor Trades Association of Australia
(52%) There 15 no uittrate controlling party of the Company, as defined by FRS 8 'Related party disclosures'

There are two Investor compames which are related parties wath the Group, In accordance with FRS 8, by virtue of
sigrificant shareholding in the Group
+ Frequency Infrastructure Communicalions Assets Limited (‘'FICAL') (48%), a company controlled by the
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board 1s a professional
investment management orgamsation based in Toronto which nvests the assels of the Canada Pensian
Plan The Canada Pension Plan Invesiment Board was incorporated as a federal Crown corperation by an
Act of Parlament in December 1897
* Macquanie European Infrastructure Fund Il (MEIF II) (25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquane Group Macquane European Infrastructure Fund Il 1s a wholesale investment fund focusing on
investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe Macquane Group Limited is Iisted in
Austraha (ASX MQG ADR MQBKY)

On 27 Mareh 2015 Peter Shore resigned as Chairman following eight years in the rele Dunng this tme the Group
has expenenced substantial growth and been through some important milestones — acquinng and integrating
National Gnd Wireless, completing the Digital Swilchover (the biggest engineenng project in the history of UK
television), won a significant role in the national Smart Metenng Project and compleled a2 major refinancing The
Board expresses its thanks and wishes Peter all the very best with ks fulure projects and endeavours

Itis with deep sadness thal the Board has to snnounce that Peter Douglas, having resigned on 31 July 2015, passed
away In August Peter had been part of the orgamsation (and ils predecessors) for more than 40 years, and his wide
and detailed knowiedge of the business, coupled with his persuasive and straightforward management style
commanded respect and admiration for those that worked with him Peter's personal contnbution to the growth and
success of Arqiva i1s unparalleled and, on behalf of the company we send our best wighes lo Peter's family at this
time

In addiion, the Board would like to express its thanks to John Cresswelt who resigned as Chuef Executive Officer on
31 July 2015 After four and a half years' service, John left Argiva in August having led Arqiva through a period of
strong EBITDA and order book growth and through a perod of business diversification enabling us to detiver record
revenues this year We wish John every success in the future

The Shareholder Board 15 compnsed of the followaing officers who were in office (on behalf of the shareholder
consertium) dunng the year and up to the date of the sigrung of the annual report and financial statements

Mike jomned Argiva as Chaimman in April 2015 brnging a wealth of experience from his
background in telecoms and technology Mike started his career as a Charlered Manageman!

o Accountant, working for 2 number of UK technology companies including ICL, GEC, STC and
Marconi
Mike Parton
Chairman

{appointed 1 April 2015)
Clive has previously held senior posittons at Tribal plc Royal Mail Group, BT and the London
2012 Olympic thd team

y i He Is also a Non-executive thrector at Eckoh ple as well as al Arqiva
Clive Ansell
Independent non-executive

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communtcations Assets Limited:

Pau! heads Canada Pension Plan Investment Board's Portfolic Value Creation group which
oversees and supporis assels in the Infrastructure, Nalural Resources and Pnvate Equity
spaces Paul is a member of the investment commitiee for Privale Investments Pnor to ths he

1
al

.. was at Parmira Advisors LLP and a Parner and Managing Director at the 8oston Consulting
G
Paul Mutins roup
Director

fappointed 2 October 2014)
Pnor to joining CPP Investment Board in July 2007, Robert worked as a Senior Engineer with
-t Buro Happold Limited, Bath, United Kingdom Pravigusly he was an Engineer with Baca Carter
Hollings & Femer Lid, Wellington, New Zealand

Robert Wall
Director
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Addrionally, Directers included Alain Carrler {resigned 2 October 2614) and Peter Douglas (resigned 31 July 2015} Alternate
directors included Prakul Kaushiva (resigned 31 July 2015) and Andreas Koltenng (resigned 2 Qctober 2014)

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited and Health Super Investments Pty
Limited (joint appointment)

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has heid a number af senior product, stratagy and
chief exacutive roles Including being a former Chief Exacutive of 8T Wholesale, one of the fouwr
operating dwisions of BT Prior to this, Sally had an eary product management career at
Mercury Communications before becoming a director at NYNEX dunng s merger with Bell

AT Atlantic to becoma Verizon
sanll?eg::s Sally is &lso a Mon-Execulive Director of the Boards of Telenor, Logrech, and City Fibre
|
{appointed 15 July 2015) OGS

Appolinted by Macquarie Eurgpean Infrastrycture Fund It

Nathan 15 an expenence tnvestment dweclor 1n Prvate Equity Infrastructure with transaction
exparhse in Isted and vnlisted environments including cross-barder transactions, scross the
i L3 Wilities, Telecommumcations, Transportation and Media sectors

Nathan Luckey
Diractor

{appointed 1 July 2015)

Mark joined MIRA n 2011 bnnging considerable expertise in the regulated uliidy sectar in tha
UK Mark was previousiy Chief Financial Officer of Thames Water, the UK's fargest water and
wastewater services company Pnor to joining Thamas Water, Mark was Finance Director of the
customer and energy divisions at EDF Energy plc, and before that held a number of Senior
Finance positona at Seehoard ple

Mark Braithwaite
Director
Directors included Edward Beckley (resigned 1 July 2015)

Appointed by Indusiry Funds Management.

Chnslian 18 Head of Infrastructure at IFM Investors, respensible for the busimess expansion in
Europe and oversight of IFM's existing European asset portfolo, of which Codan Trust
Company s an investiment vehicle Chnstian is located at IFM's London office

[\

Christian Seymour
Director
Alternate directors included Adnanus Wamsteker (resigned 28 August 2014) and Deepu Chintamanent (appointed 2 Oclober
2014)

Appointed by industry Funds Management and Motor Trades Association of Australia {joint appointment)

Darman fs a Partner in Herdnck & Struggles, a leading globai executive search firm where he s
a member of the global Industnal and CEQ & Board practicas Damian has more than twenty
years' international expenence as a chartered accountant, management and feadership
consuitant As the Director of Tax in the Emst & Young Global Office, Damian was rasponsible
for strategy formulation and execution to grow the business across key geographies, industries
Damian Walsh and service lines

Director
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The Management Board consiss of the Executive Directors aligned to the operational structure of the business

'?r Michael Giles

i) $imon Beresford-Wylie Phit Moses Coemmercial Director

Chief Executive Office Chief Financlal Officer
{appolnted 1 August 2015}

: Stave Holebrook Wendy McMillan - David Crawford
¥ M uvel ogl rm: Managing Director, Smart Managing Director,
i i A MM Sateftita and Medla

Terrastrial Broadcast

Nicotas Ot Stuart Cockbum
p ol Matnhev;grea:lay 5 Managing Director, Group Strategy and
ractor of Peoplo an Tolecoms Buslness Development
Organisation Rirector

Adam Bradley was appointed to the Managemen! Board as Interim Chief Transformation Officer on 5 May 2015 to
lead the business ransformation programme With an effective date of 30 June 2015, Charles Conslable (Managing
Director, Digital Platforms) and Cameron Rejall (Chief Technology Officer) left the Group We thank them both for
their valuable contnbutions and wish them weli in the future

Subsequent 1o the year end, the Group announced the alignmenl of Telecoms and Smart Metering M2M nto a
single business unit and the mtegration of Group Strategy end Business Development pnmanly in the customer
facing business units (sge page 14) As a resull of these changes Stuart Cockbum and Wendy McMillan will be
resigning from the Management Board on 30" September 2015 and 3t* October 2015 (respectively)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The apprapnate, enterpnse wide management of risk is important for us to meet our corporate objectives and for us
to protect our future competitive advantage The strategic tmporiance of risk management is recognised by top
performing companies and 1s an tmportant part of good corporate gavernance Arqiva subscnbes to the Enterprise
Risk Management ('ERM'} approach to managing its nsk profile

Our approach to managing nsk 1s in accordance with the 1ISO31000 2009 Risk Process

Monitor and
Review

.....t Estabiish Context ]._. Communicate and

- 1.;..,-'** " T N
ﬂ Identify nisks ]m
|
.l-l Analyse nsks J._.
I
.,..l Evaluats nisks
Treat risks N

Consutlt

Ardrmam frem 15031000 X0

To manage risk, a nsk register has been developed for each business umit This 1s then consaldated into a carporate
nsk register; the former being reviewed on a monthly basis by business unit management, the latter 1s reviewed by
the managemeni board on a quarterly basts

agemeri
eview of the corporate
Bgister. to include rev
isk manzgemant pa

- setting of risk appetite
manitafing compliante.
reporting of significant
> the Beard of Dire

wer the effectiverioss
foup’s systerm of intér

" controls and processes, a
7 the effectiveness of th
U managemant framework,’
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A selection of the key business risks affecting the Group are set out below together with 8 summary of the Group's
mitigating actions, in addiion the Group has long term contracts i place with a number of significant blue chip
customers which support the Group's long temm financial stability

“Business unils have been sbbrovialed as follows. Temestnal Broadcast (‘TA) Digltal Platforms (DPY), Satelhite and Media ( 87,
Talecoms ('T} and Smart Melering M2M {'SM)

Risk type

Reputational

Businass
Units*

Description of risk [
uncertainty
Bad publicty  damages
Argiva's reputaticn 85 a result
of
* A major event or mcident
impacting our sarvices
» Untimely dslivery on
malor projects
» Repaated unexpected
service outages
s Security breach an
networks

Recent developiments

Amiva has continued to
achieve its target result for
‘network  availability' {see
key pesformante indicators
on page 24}

The Group has acheved
and maintained 15027001
certification regarging
information  secunty and
holds penodic reviewa of the
sacurity environment

Management of risk /
uncenainty

The Group carefully engages
with its customers to ensure that
project mileslonas sre carefully
managed and management
regulary review the progress
stalus of all projects

Through continugus
measurement of operational
KPIs and addressing shartfatls i
performance through process
excellance the risk around
service reliabdity (s carefully
managed

The Group has n place a cnus
management plan for public
refations and external
communicabans to  prowde
suppart should there ke any
major events This = regularly
monitored and reviewed

Demand

Consoldalicn  of  market
players due to mergers and
acquistions which could lead
to changes in the timing of
contract renewal discussions

The MNO market s highly
competitive prompting
recent merger and
acquisiion sctvity with BT
Group announcing n
February 2015 an
agreement to acquire EE
and Hutchinson  Group
announcing a3 deal to
acquire O2 in the UK to
combine with s Three
Mabile Group In bath cases,
regulatory declsions are
awaited

The Group has secured long
term conXracts with all of the
major UK MNOs, including EE,
Telofonica O2 and Vodafcne

The Group’s sitas are
predommantly located in rural
and suburtban arsas  Therr
location, exclusivity, and
restrctive planning
regulations create significant
barriers to switching

The Group seeks to protect dsell
by negoliating leng term
contracts where 1 makes itself
the foca! point for consolidation,
and [faclitates the WMNOs
consohdation in return for long
term revenue certainty

The leve! of demand for
wireless communications and
impact on demand for access
to the Group's towers

Recent research predicls
that by 2019, WiF networks
will camry more than 50% of
smartphone and tablet data
traffic Amgiva has a strong
presance in this market and
has adopted a wholesala
WiF) stratagy, successfully
signing up a major MVNO in
2014

Signlficant amounts of capital
axpendilure have been investad
in develeping the wareless
commupications infrastructure in
the UK The Group monidars tha
demand for mobile data which
contnues to grow and
Indications are that spectrum
capacity and antanna
deployments, will need fto
increase to cope with this
demand The Group continues
to closaly monior  the
development of
wirgless technalegy and natwark
deployment activitles by MNOs
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Risk type

Business
Units*

Cescription of risk /
uncertainty

Recent devetopments

Mapagement of risk /
uncertainty

Supply chain M Under-perfomance of sub- Argiva has continued ta  Our contracts are worded such
contractors coukd lead to an mes! s network deployment  that the Group’s nisk ts mitigated
inability to meet tmahne and milestones dunng FY15 (see  through contraciual
quality requirements and key performance indicators rembursements Qur contracts
cause programme shppage on page 24) are structured Into mifestones

such that we are accountable to
our  stakehoiders faor our
contractual obligaltons and our
performance [E] managed
accordingly

Heaith and All Risk of an wncident causing Cunng FY15, Argiva Traimng and  rescue  skills

safety death or senous mury during maintained s comphance courses are required on an
site warks or gngmeernng with OHSAS518001 regarding  annual basts Rescue kis are

safety management pravided
Argiva malntams and regularly
reviews its policy on workplace
safety

Technelegical | TB,DP, S  Develepments in sllernative Leveraging off the DTT retalns the largest share of
broadcast technologies, such develepment of our broadcast transmission in the
es broadband wnternet  Conneclad Salutons UK, and IPTV  remping
connecled v, which offering to win the contract constramed by bmited high
compeles agzinst the Group’s 1o provide engmeenng speed broadband uptake and
DTT transmission busingss axpertise  supporting the variable reliability levels |In

rollout of Freeview Play additron the Group has mitigated
some of this nsk by investing 1n
YouView TV Limifed, a ot
venture formed to develop and
promote the DTT platform,
together with ils developmen? in
Connect TV - a hybnd Internet
Protocol Television ('IPTV)DTT
offenng

Qperatianal All Major infrastructure network or There 15 a dedicated Business
satellite fatlure causing Continuity Working Group which
mulliple platfiorm faiures ar meets on a regular basis to
service oulages review plans and procedures in

place and the prowsion of
disaster recovery services
The Group's business continurly
plans are tested to ensure that
they are robust and fit for
purpose and that there s the
right skilis mix and knowledge
within the Group
All Networks, systems and stes The Group maintains an
are subject to secunty threats 15027001 certrfication regarding
leading 1o a loss or corruption nformation  securdy which
of data includes Cloud Secunty
Services Employee tramning on
Infarmaltien security is mandatory
and quarterly revews are
undertaken by external
consyltanis to examine the
robustness of the secunty
F environment

Political T8, bP Intermabional decssions I the UK Budgel The Group contnuas to engage
regarding the future use of the anaouncement in  March  with Ofcom and the broadcasters
600 / 700MHz spectrum for 2015 the Government 0 ensure that Argrva and the
DTT stated that t will allocate up  television industry's needs are

to £600m to deliver the 700 fully considered and sufficient
The Warid Radio- MHz spacirum clearance spectrurn is available for OTT in
commumnications Conference programme Discussigns are  addition, the Group are actively
2012 {'WRC-1Z") signafled that progressing around the engaged in the feasiblty study
countnes may clear the 700 grants aliocation progess o for 700MMz clearance
MHz band of OTT n enable the main programma
preparation for future use by to commence
Mebile Broadband This would
result tn the 600MHz specirum
cleared during DSO having to
be used for existing terrestna)
™
Financial Detalls of the financial nsks and detads of miigaling factors are set out in the Directors’ report on page 36
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Directors’ report

The Drrectors of Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Umited (ABHL"), registered company number 05254001, ('the
Company') and its subsidianes (‘the Group’) submit the annual report and audited consolidated financia! slatements
(‘finanmal statements’) in respect of the year ended 30 June 2015

The Company 1s a holding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companigs and
ather holding compames

Financial risk management

The principal neks and uncerainttes of the Group have been outlined previously n this section of the repert (see
page 33) As a result of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Argwa Is
exposed to a vanety of financial nsks that include pnce nsk, credit nsk, hquidity nsk, interest rate risk and foreign

exchange nsk

The key financlal nsks affecting the Group are set out below together with a summary of how the risks are managed

Type

nsk

Description of
risklunceriainty

Intarast rate Exposure to Interest rale nsk

due to borrowing vanable rate
bank debt

Management of risk

The Group uses interest rate and infiation swaps to hedge its exposure ta
nsing nterest rates Tha Group mamtains a hedging policy to manage
interest rate nsk and to ensure the certamnty of future Interest cash flows it
currently has fixed rate hedging, spit betwesn interest rals swaps and
inflation swaps Interest rate swaps convert variable rate interest costs to
fixed rate interest costs while nflation swaps convert fixed rale mterest
costs to RPI-linked costs, which fluctuate in ine with the RPI index as do a
significant proportion of the Group's revenue contracts  Details of the
interest rate profile of the Group's liabilities are provided in note 17

Financing nsk

The Group will need to refinance
at least part of Ita debt as #
matures and may need
additional financing to cover
capital expenditure and certain
olher expenses to support s
growth plans  The Group cannot
be certain thal such fnancing
will be readly avalable on
altractive or histoneally
comparable terms

Breach of debt covenants and/or
a downgrade in our rating could
impact the availabiity of inance
or the comparability of tarms

The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the stable long lerm
nvestment grade captal structure :n place, our BBB ralings reflact our
strong abity to serwice and repay debt from our cash flows aver &
reasonable penod of hme, mantaining an achive dialogus with lenders and
(nvestors, mamntaiming debl with a vanety of medium and long term
maturities so that over time we do not have a significant concentration of
debt dus for refinzncing in any given year, and alming to refinance debt
well in advance of the matunty date

With regards to covenants the Group emaintains financisl covenant
montonng and moadelling, both retrospectively and prospactively and
maniains regular dialogue with eredit ratings agencies

Credd nsk

The Group is exposed to credd
nsk on customer recevables

The Group 15 exposed lo
counterparty nsks in s Treasury
operatons

This 15 menagad through appropniate credit checking procedures prior to
taking on new customers, and higher nsk custemars paying tn advance of
services bemg provided Performance 1s closely monitored to ensure
agreed service levels are mantzined reducing the level of quered
payments and mitigating the nsk of uncollectable debts

Dataills of the debt matunty profile are provided in note 17 The Group
cargfully mansges the credt risk on liqud funds and denvative financial
mnstruments with balances curmently spread across a range of major
financial Insttutions which have sabsfactory credit ralings assigned by
intemational cradit rating agencies  The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group's on-going nisk management processes, which include a
regutar review of the credit ratings  Risk in this area is imited further by
satling a maximum leval and term for deposiis with any single
cauntemparty

Liquidity sisk

Ensuring the Group has
sufficent available funds for
working capllal requirements
and planned growth

Tne Group maintans cash reserves and access to undrawn committed
faciies to cover forecast requiremants  As at 30 June 2015 the Group
had £100m available working capital facilitles and £70m cash available to
cover short tarm cash flow timing differences if required, together with a
£400m capial expenditure faciity, of which £120m had been drawn in the
year In adddion, the Group has £200m of liquidity faclities available to
cover senior intarest payments  raquired
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Description of Management of risk

riskfuncertainty
Price risk Energy is a majar component of A large proportion of this is managed via pass-through amangements to
the Group's cost base and is custemers The Group's residual exposure to fluctuaticns in the elactricity
subject to price volatility price 1 managed byforward purchasing the majorty of power
requirements up to 12 months mn advance Key revenue and cost
meastones are set on larger projects to ensure the fnancial risks of volalile
market pncing are mirgated

Foremgn The Group operates from UK Management regularly menter the impact of foreign exchange nsks and
exchange tisk  sies and predominantly in the assess the need to put any mmigating financtal instruments in place Dunng
UK market While some the year, forward foreign exchange contracls were used to fix the
customer and supplier contracts  exchange rate for certain overseas revenue conlracts, and cross currency
are  denominated n  other swaps were utllised to fix the exchange rate In relabon to US Dollar
currencies (malnly US Dollars  denominaled Senior bonds  Delals of the cross curency swaps are
and Euros), the majorty of the provided m note 17
Group's revenues and costs are
stering based, and accordmgly
axposure to foreign exchange
risk 1s hmited

Audit Committee

The Group's Audit Committes is chaired by Damian Walsh (and includes representation from the shareholder board)
and rmontors the Integnty of the Group’s financial statemenls and the effectiveness of the extemal audit process it
has the responsibility for ensuring that an appropnale relationship exists between the Group and the external auditor,
including a review of non-audil services and fees

In addibon, 1t has responsibilitles of oversight of risk management procedures, monilonng comphance and regulatory
issues (including whistle blowing arrangements), and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's intemal controls and
internal audit funchion The internat audit function agrees ds annual audit plan with the Audit Committee and reguiarly
reports its findings and recommendations to it

The Commiltee 15 authonsed to seek any mformation it requires from any employee of the Company in order to
pesform its duties, and 1o cblain any external legal or other professional counsel it requires

Meetings of the Commuttee are attended, al the inwtation of the Chairman of the Commitiee, by the external auditers,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the Management Board and intemal
audit

Internal audit

The Audit Committee 15 responsible for reviewing the work underiaken by the Group's internal audit function,
assessing the adequacy of the funclion's resource and the scope of #ts pracedures The Group’s ntemnal audit plan
incorporates an annual rolling review of business actmties, and incorporates both financial and non-financial controls
and procedures

The Committee considers the Group's current intemnal audit function to be operating efiectively

External audit

The Audit Commitiee 1s respansible for making recommendations 1o the Board on the appoiniment, re-appointment
and removal of the Group’s external suditor The Committee makes an assessment of the auditor's mdependence
and objectivity taking into account the refationship with the auditor as a whole, including the provision of any non-
aud! services

The Group benefits from regular dialogue with its auditor regarding the accounhbng treatment of any complex or
significant new contracts contemplated throughout each financial year, with the focus in the current year having been
on the envisaged accounting approach for the 700MHz clearance pragramme The Group proaclively engages with
its auditor in order to ensure it is well prepared for future changes to accounting standards and other applicable
developments which may impact Arqiva At present the Group 18 discussing matters including
« the expected conversion fo International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS"), the changes under which
would apply to the Group from the 30 June 2016 year end,
+ the recenlly published IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Customer Conlracts’ Standard, and the mplications of this
new Standard on both new and existing Argiva confracts, coming inte effect for the year ended 30 June
2019,
+ the expecled project procgramme and accounting for the future 700MHz clearance project, and
» the joint IASB and FASB exposure draft on leases which continues to be evolving

The auditor provides certain non-audit servicas, pnncipally in relation to transaction supporl services, non-audit
assurance and tax compliance The Audit Committee ensures that appropnate safeguards of audit independence are
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established and applied In line with the auditor independence requirements the pnncipal auditor was rotated for the
expression of the 2015 audit opinion

Equal opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beanng in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilites of the applicant concemed In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort 1s
made to ensure that ther employment with the Group continues and the appropnate training arranged it is the policy
of the Group that the training, career deveiopment and promotion of a disabled person, should, as far as possible, be
identical to that of a person who does not suffer from a disability Further information on how Arqiva supporis its
employees can be found on page 27 of the Strategic report

Creditor payment policy
The Group seeks to treat all of its suppliers fairly and it is the Group's policy to agree the terms of payment at the

start of business with that supplier, ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and to pay mn
accordance with 11s contractual and other legal obligations

Argva’s key costs are payroll, satelile capacity, rent, rates and power Hence the majonty of the Group's cost base
Is dnven by compelitive markels Arqiva engage multiple large national suppliers for key services such as utdiies
and construction agreements required for new contracts This ensures nol just a viable on-gamng cost base but
reduces business nsk by imiting dependency on individual suppliers

Charitable and political donations

Detaiis of chantable donations can be found on page 28 No political donations were made during the year {2014
nona)

Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technology, the costs of which are capialised
m accordance with the Group's accounting policy where they meet the entena for capitalisation under UK GAAP The
research costs expensed in the year were £14m (2014 £2 3m) In addibon, the Group cames out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of {he bid costs unless the
development expenditure can be capitalised The bid cosls expensed dunng the year total £3 8m (2014 £3 6m)

Development costs Incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customer contracts, are included
with the total project spend within tangible fixed assels The Group's capliial expenditure in the year was £180 8m
(2014 £183 8m) and includes capitalised labour of £55 9m (2014 £43 3m) Other development casls would be
capitalised within intangible fixed assets In the year, development casts capitalised total £0 8m (2014 £0 8m), with
amortisation of £0 3m (2014 Enil} charged against such capilalised development costs

Overseas branches
The Group has trading branches based in the Republic of Ireland, Isle of Man and Jersey

Post balance sheet events
There have been no events since the balance sheet date which would have a malenal impact on the Group and
require disclosure within the financial statements under UK GAAP

Dividends and transfers to reserves

The Company has declared no dwidends in the year {2014 none declared) Group companies Now Digital (East
Midlands) Limited and South West Digital Radio Limited have declared extemal dividends of £0 2m and £0 1m
respectively (2014 none declared) The consolidaled loss for the year of £588 2m (2014 £503 7m) was transferred
to reserves

Going concern

The strategic report includes information on the structure of the business, our business environment, financial review
for the year and details of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group Notes 15 and 17 of the consolidated
financial statements include iformation on the group's cash, borrowings and denvatives, and financial nsk
management information presented within this report The directors are satisfied that with these foracasts alongside
the Group's cumment funding end facilittes the Group has adequale resources to continue for the foreseeable future
The directors therefore remain confident that the Group will have adequate resource to continue In opsrational
existence far the foresesesble future and conbinue lo adopi a going concem basis tn prepanng the consclidated
financial statements

The directors continue to be confident that the Group will have adequate resource to conbnue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and therefore the Company and the Group adopts the going concern basis in
preparing its financlal statements
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Future developments
The Group plans fo continue to invest in its business units in accordance with ifs strategy Further detall is contained
within the Sirategic report on page 5

The Company will continue to remain a holding company

Ownership and Directors
A description of the ownership of the Group and the directors holding office during the year and up 1o the date of
signing of the financial statements can be found on page 30

Dunng the year, Peter Shore resigned as Chatrman following B years in the role At 30 June 2015, Mike Parton was
the Group's independent Charman Michael Gites 1s the Company Secretary For detalls on the background of the
Directors' and the Management Board please refer to the company website www arqiva com

Directors’ indemnities

The Campany has provided an indemmnity for #ts Directors and the Company Secretary, which 18 a quabfying thd
party indemnity prowision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2008 The tdemnity was 1n force during the full
financial year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements

Disclosure of information to the independent Auditors
The Dlrectors of the Company in office at the dale of approval of this report confirm that
* 5o far as the Direclors are aware there 1s no relevant audil information of which the Auditors are unaware,
and
« each Director has taken alt the steps that he cught to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establtsh that the Company's Auditors are aware of that information

On behalf of the Board

Heo—

Mike Parton - Director
Crawley Court
Winchester

Hampshire

5021 2QA

\\ September 2015
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors o prepare financia! statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under
company law the Directors must nol approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and far view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
penod

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and
« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounhing records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’'s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissenvination of
financial statements may differ from legisiaton in other junsdictions
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Independent Auditor’'s report to the Members of Argiva
Broadcast Holdings Limited

Report on the financial statements

Qur oplnion
In our opirion, Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the
*financial stalemanis”)
a  give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affars as at 30 June 2015 and of
the group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended,

s« have been properly prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

* have been prapared in accordance wath the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
What we have audited

The finangial statements compnse
» the Consolidated balance sheet and the Company balance sheet as al 30 June 2015,

* the Consolidated profit and loss account and the statement of group total recogmised gains and losses for
the year then ended,

s the Consclidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,

» the notes {o the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financtal reporting framework thal has been apphed in the preparation of the financial statements 1s applicable law
and United Kingdorn Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In applylng the financial reporting framework, the direclors have mada a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates In makmg such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered
future events

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required to repott to you if, in our opinion
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

» adequatle accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retuns adequate for our audit have
not been recewed from branches not visiled by us, or

+ the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceplions to report ansing fram this responsibility

Dhrectors’ remuneration
Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report fo you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specifled by law are not made We have no excephions to report ansing from this responsibilty

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responslibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responasibiliies Stalement, the airectors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our rasponsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
international Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) ('ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors
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This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance
with Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for na other purpose We do nat, in giing thess opmrons,
accept or assume respansibibly for any other purpese or to any other parson to whom this report 1s shown or into whose
hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in wrting

What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit m accordance with [SAs (UK & Irefand) An audit inveives abtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures mn the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
s whether the accounting policies are appropnate 1o the group’s and the company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

= the reasonableness of significant accounting estimales made by the directors, and
= the overall presentation of the financial statements

We pnmanly focus our work 1n these areas by assessing the direclors' jJudgements against available evidence, forming
our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtam audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read ali the financial and non-financial infarmation N the Annual Report 1o idenitfy material
Incansistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that i1s apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the [mplications for our report

(ot \ptoands™

Graham Lambert (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncawalerhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statulery Auditors

Southampton

| ‘LSeplember 2015
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Consolidated profit and loss account

Year anded 30 June 2015 Year snded 30 Juns 2014
Pre plionsl Extep | Total Pre ptional Extephonat Tatal
Nots fems ems tems kerns
€m Lm ©m Em &m t'm

Continuing operations
Turnover (including shara of joint
venture) B69 1 - 869 1 B395 - 8395
Less share of joint venture turnover {12 0) - {120) (139) - (13 9)
Group turnover 2 857 1 - 8571 B256 - 8258
Cost of sales (328 3) - (328 3) (301 4) - (301 4)
Gross profit 528 8 - 528 8 5242 - §24 2
Depraciation (1197 - (197 {122 6) - {122 6)
Amortisaton (158 9) - (158 ) {157 7} - (877
tmpairment - (337N 337 - - -
Other adminisiralive expenses (110 8) (117 (122 3) (117 8) (82) (126 Q)
Totzl Administrative expenses (289 2) 454 (434 6) (398 1) (82) (408 3)
Group operating profit 3.4 13986 (45 4) 94 2 1261 (82) 117 ¢
Share of operating profit in joint .
ventura and gssociates 36 36 217 ” 27
Total operating profit* Group and
share of joint venture and 1432 {45 4) 978 128 8 {82) 1206
assoclates
Income from imvestments 02 - 02 D4 - 04
Profit on ordinary activities before
taxalion and interest 143 4 (45 4) 98 0 1292 (82) 12190
Interast recevable and simiar 1ncome 7 25 10 5 23 - 23
Interest payable and simiar charges 48 {508 3) (100 5) (508 8) {531 1} {(1123) (643 4)
Share of joint venture interest payable (12) {12) {15) - {15)
Loss on crdinary actlvities before
taxation (363 6) (144 9) (508 5) 401 1) {120 5) {52186)
Tax on loss on ordinary activites -] (57 6) 82
Loss on ordinary actlvitles aftar
taxation (566 1) {503 4)
Equity munonity interests 1) {0 3}
Lass for the financial year 21 (566 2) {503 7)

There are no matenal differences betwaen losses on ordmary activities for the year above and the comparative year and
their histonical cost equivalents
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Consolidated balance sheet

Nots 30 June 2016 30 June 2014
E'm £'m
Fixed asgets
Intang:ble assets 11 16876 18668
Tangible assets 12 1,767 1 1,710 3
Investments 13
Invesiments in jomnt veniure
- Share of gross assets 201 221
- Share of gross liabidias {15 6) (19 8)
- Goodwill on acquisition - 82
Investments in associatad undertakings 01 D1
46 106
34593 35877
Current assets
Debtars 14 2374 269 6
Cash at bank and in hand 15 98 5 87 4
Total currant assets 3359 3670
Creditors amounts falfing due within ane year 16 (1,143 6) {970 7)
Net current liabllitles (807 7} {803 7)
Total assets less current liabilitles 26516 29840
Creditors amounts falting due after mare than one year 17 (4,526 7} (4,297 6)
Provisions for labilities 18 (85 4} (47 9}
Net liabilities excluding penslon surplus (1,930 5) {1,361 6)
Panstan sumlus 27 - kY]
Net liabilities Including pension surplus (1,930 5) {1,357.7)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 6539 6539
Share prefmium account 20 356 358
Profit and loss account 21 {2,800 3) (2,327 B)
Total shareholders’ deficit 22 {1,830 8) {1,358 4)
Minonty interest 01 o7
Capltal employed {1,930 5) (1,357 7)

The accounting policies and noles on pages 49 to 81 form part of these financial statements

These financial statements on pages 44 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors on H

ware ed on its behalf by

g

Mike Parton ~ Direcior

September 2015 and
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Statement of group total recognised gains and losses

Year snded Year snded
30 June 2013 30 June 2014
£'m E'm
(Loss) / profit for the financial year
- Group (568 &) {504 9)
- Joinl Ventures 24 12
Loss for the financial year {566 2) (5037
Actuanal foss on pension scheme (69) 53
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme 14 11
Exchange adjustment offsat in reserves (translation of foreign investments) on 02
Total recognised losses for the year {572 4) (8077
Total recognised (losses) / profit for the financral year
- Group (574 8) {508 9)
- Joint Ventures 24 12
Total recognised losses for the yaar (572 4) (507 T)
\
|
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Note Year andsd Yaar sndwd
30 June 2015 A0 June 2014
£m E'm
Net cash inflow from operating activities 23 3801 3421
Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interas) receved ar 08
Interest paxt (209 9) (228 7)
Interest element of finance lease rentals (11} {11}
Debt issue costs gnd facility arrangement fees (33) 77
Dividends from investments 02 04
Dividends paid to minorty mnterests 10 {03) -
{2137} (236 2)
Tax paid {0 5) {0 4)
Capltal expanditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (194 8) (152 B)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets {0 6) 12)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 05 81
{184 9} (145 9)
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings {including payment of deferred consideration) - (39
Cash acqulred with subsldiary undertakings - 01
. (3.8}
Financlng
Finance lease capital {02) 0 5)
Loans to assaciates and joint ventures (02} 02
Repayment of externa)l borrowings (374 9) {532 5)
Raising of external borrcowings 4200 5345
Repayment of premum o swap issuance” {156} an
Premium on swap issuance 1005 1053
Cash outflow an clase out of swaps {100 5} (Mmz23
Proceeds on dispasal of swap options 10 .
30.1 (7 4)
Increase / (decrease) in cash 24 11 {51 8}
Reconcillation of net cash Aow to movement In net debt
Net debt at 1 July {4,190 5) (3,964 0)
Increase / (decrease) in net cash 114 {51 8)
Movement in borrowings (26 8) 74
Other cash changes - 77
Other non-cash changes (137 2) (190 0)
Net debt at 30 June 24 {4,353 4) (4,190 5)

*To provide additionat clanty to the reader the repayment of prermuum on swap ssuance has been presentad as a separate Ime item tn
these financial statements having previously been Included within repaymant of external borrowings
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Company balance sheet

Note 20 June 2016 30 June 2014
£€m E'm

Fixad assets
Investments 13 1,767 0 1,767 0
Current assets
Debtors (including £1 8m due efter more than one year (2014 £1 8m)} 14 19 18
Cash at bank and In hand 15 01 o1
Total current assets 20 1%
Credtors amounts faling due within one year 16 {(10) ©1
Net current assels 10 18
Total assets less current hablities 1,768 0 1,768 8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 6539 6539
Share premium account 20 3156 3156
Profit and loss account 21 7985 7993
Total shareholders’ funds 2 1,768 0 1,768 8

The accounting policies and notes on pages 49 o 81 form part of these financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on \\ September 2015 and were signed on its

behalf by

ordo—.

Mike Parton - Director

Argive Broadcast Holdings Limited
Company reglsiraticn no 05254001
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Notes to the financial statements

1

Principal accounting policies

The foliowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in refation to the Group's and Company's financial
slatements

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d}

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable UK
accounting standards under the histoncal cost convention The Company 1s exempt under 5408 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account The Company made a
loss for the year of £0 8m (2014 £nil loss) pnor to dividends paid of £nil (2014 Enil)

Basis of consolidation

The consofidaled financial statements incorporate the assets and liabiliies of all entties controlled by the
Company, as &t 30 June 2015, and the results of all controlled entiies for the year then ended

Businesses acquired, previously held extemally ta the Group, are accounted for as acquisitions with effect from
the date contro! passes Those disposed of are accounted for up until the date of disposal Intra group profits
have been ehminaled Undertakings, other than subsidiary undertakings, in which the Group has an investment
representing not less than 20% of the voting nghts and over which it exerts significant influence are treated as
associated undertakings Assoclates are accounted for using the equity method of eccounling In accordance
with FRS 8 ‘Assomates and joint ventures’ Joint vantures are accounted for using the gross equity method The
consolidated financial stalements include the appropriate share of those undartakings’ results and reserves

Going concern

The Group adopts the going concern basis in prepanng its consolidated financial statements based on future
profit, cash flows and avallable faclites, which lead the Dhrectors of the Company to be confident that the
Group will have adequate resources to continue i operational existence for the foreseeable future Dunng the
year, the Group had a net cash inflow from opersting actwities of £380 1m (2014 £342 tm)

The Company Is In a net assei position and has net current assets

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assels are stated al onginal purchase cost (which includes costs directly attnbutable to bringing
the assets into working condition), being far value for tangible fixed assets acquired on acquisibon, less
accumulated depreciatton and any provision for impairment

In accordance with FRS 15 ‘Tangible fixed assets', directly attnbutable finance costs are capialised where
assels take a significant penod of ime to become ready for use

Depreciation 1s provided on a siraight line basis at rates calculated to wrile off the cost or valued amount, less
estimated residual value, of assets over their estimated useful lives The useful economic lives of the assets
have besn determined taking into account the expected rate of technological developments, market
requirements and expected use of the assets The selected depreciation rates are regularly reviewed to ensure
thay remain appropnate to the Group's circumstances

_Asset Descnption Estimated Useful Life
Freehold buiidings 20 - 80 years
Leasehold buldings Length of lease
Plant and equipment
- Communications infrastructura network 8 - 100 years
- Natwork computer equipmant 3~ 20 years
« Motor vehicles 3 -5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated

Capital work in progress 1s not depreciated until construction is complete and the asset I1s capable of operating in
the manner intended by the Group in accordance with FRS 15
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1
(e)

"

(9)

{h)

i

Principal accounting policies {continued)

Turnover

The Group's accounting policy in respect of tumover is set out in note 2

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Intangible fixed assets are stated at onginal purchase cost, being fair value for intangible fixed assets acquired
on acquisition, less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impawment  The useful economic lives of
intangible fixed assets are reviewed on an anpual bassis and revised f required, and consideration 1s made of
whether there has been any indicator of impairment

reh me {

Development costs incurred ta produce new, or substantally improved, products and services within the Group
are capilalised n accordance with SSAP 13 ‘Accounbng for research and development” and are amortised from
the commencement of service over the life of the relevant contract Research costs, expenmenta! or theoretical
work undertaken which does not constiute development, are expensed as incurred

lcen

Licences acquired (typically to provide radio and WiF1 services) and are capitalised and amortised on & strayght
line basis over their licence perlod

Goodwll

Purchased goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight Iine basis over s estimaled useful hfe, which 1s
considerad to be no longer than 20 years The Group capialises costs associated with the acquisition of
subsidianes within goodwili

Access nghts

Access nghts mnclude customer contracts and customer relalionships and are stated at onginal purchase cost,
being fair value for acquired subsidiaries, and amortised on a straight Iins basis over their expected usefu! Ife

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asse! investments are slated at cost less any provision for impairment in value, in accordance with FRS 11
'Impalrment of fixed assets and goodwll’

Foreign currencies

Transachons in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rale ruling at the dale of the transacton except
in the case of certan financing transactions where hedgmg amrangemenis are in place and transactions are
recordad al the contracted rate Monetary assets and liabilities denoted in foreign currencles are retranstated at
the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheel date or contracted rate if applicable and any exchange difference
ansing are taken to the profil and loss account  Transactlons n the profit and loss account of overseas
operations are translated using an average exchange rate Exchange differences on translation of overseas
branches are recognised through the 'Statement of group lotal recognised gains and losses’

Leasing commitments

Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substanhially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of
the asset have passed to the Group, ara capitalised in the balance sheet and depreciated over their useful
econamic lives or the lease term, if shorter

The capial elements of fulure lease obligations are recorded as habities, while the inferest elements are
chargad to the profit and loss account over the penod of the lease to produce a constant rale of charge on the
balanze of capital repayments cutstanding

Operating lease payments for assels leased from third parties are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight line basis over the pencd of the lease
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(k)

n

(m)

{m

(o)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Equlprnent leased to customers under finance leases 1s deemed to be sold at normal selling price and this value
1s laken to turnover al the inception of the lease Debiors under finance leases represent outstanding smounts
due under these agreements, less finance charges allocated to future periods Finance lease interest is
recognised over the primary penod of the iease so as to produce a constant rate of return on the net cash
investments

Taxation and deferred taxation

The charge for taxation 1s based on the result for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to bming
differences between the treatment of cartain items for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred taxation 1s
prowded fully in respect of all iming differences using the liability method for timing differences where there 1s an
obhigation lo pay more tax, or & nght to pay less tax, in the future The provision 1s calculated using the rates
expecled to be applicable when the asset or hability crystallises based on curmrent tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asse! is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when it is mare likely than not
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to recover camed forward tax losses and from which the
future reversal of tming differences can be deducted Deferred tax is not recognised on revalued fixed assets
until a binding agreement is in place to sell such assets and the rasulting gan or (oss has been recognised in the
financial statements Deferred tax is measured an an undiscounted basis

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the present vatue of the expenditures expected to be required to saltle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects the curren! market assessments of the hme value of money and the nsks
specific to the obligakon The increase n the provision due lo the passage of ime Is recognised as interest
expense

Dacommissioning provisions are recogrused within prowisions for liabilies and charges and included within fixed
assets, where the costs of dismantling assets are considered matenal The armounts recognised within fixed
assets are depreciated cover the useful economic life of the asset The provisions are discounted to reflect the
time value of money where matenal

Borrowings

Borrowings are stated at ther sssue proceeds, net of issue costs, less amounis repaid  Issue costs are
amorbsed over the term of the borrowing to achleve a constant rate on the carmying amount  Interest on the
borrowings s recognised as an expense as it eccrues over the penod of the loan, unless capilalised as noted In

palicy (d)

Post retirement benefits

Defined contnbution schemes

For defined contribution schemes, the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs
and other post-retirement benefits 1s the contnbution payable in the year [iffarences between contributions
payable for the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as eilher accruals or prepayments in the balance
sheet

Defined bensfit schemesg

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separalely from thase of the Group, in
separate trustee admirustered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at far value and habiies are
measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and terms ta the scheme liabilites
Any defined benefil asset or hability 1s presented separately on the face of the balance sheet and net of deferred
tax

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and overnight deposits are disclosed within cash at bank

Interest

Interest Income and expense are accounted for on an accruals basis and compnse amounts recervable on
deposits and payable on borrowings and finance leases
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(p)

(a)

n

Principal accounting poficies (continued)

Derivative finangial Instruments

The Group uses interest rate and inflation swaps to reduce dis exposure to fluctuations i vanrable interest rates
on its debt Recepts, payments and accreting llabilites on interest rate and inflation swaps are recognised on an
accruals basis, over the life of the instrument  Changes in the fair value of such dervatives are not recagnised
Amounts received and paid under interest rate and inflabion swaps are shown net under financing costs, where
they are part of the same legal agreement and settled net in praclice The Group utiises forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the value of its foreign currency transactions In addition, the Group ublises cross
currency swaps to hedge the principal and interest payments due under foreign currency debt instruments
against vanations in foreign exchange and Interest rates The changes n the fair value of such derivatives are
not recagnised, and the gain or loss on settlement is taken to the profit and loss account

Upon its refinanceng in February 2013 the Group termmated centain interest rate swap arrangements The
economic subsiance of these transactions refiected the overall hedging strategy of the Group from the onginal
debt raising and the subsequent refinancing As such the termination costs have been deferred and netted
against the financing hability and are to be amortised to finance costs in the profit and loss account over the
term of the new fixed rate debt and are classified as denvative ¢lose out costs

Government grants

Government granis relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and release to the profit and
loss account over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned Other grants are credited to the profit and
loss account as the related expenditure 1s incurred

Share issue costs

In accordance with the provision contained in FRS 4 'Capital instruments’, all 1ssue costs (as defined within the
meaning of FRS 4) are accounted for as a deduchion in the proceeds of the relevant capital nstruments

2 Turnover and segmental reporting

Tumover, which 1s stated net of value added tax, includes the value of charges made for transmission services,
distnbulion services, products, facilibies leasing, external network services to nalional and intemational telecommunication
operatars, other contracts, rents from properties and charges made under site shanng agreements

Turnover is recognised as services are provided Cash received or invoices raised in advance is taken to deferred
income and recogrised as tumover when service 1s provided Where consideration recewved in advance s discounted
reflecting a signlficant financing component ! 1s reflected within turnover and nterest payable and similar charges
Turnover recognised in advance of cash receved or invoices raised 1s taken lo accrued income

Profit 1s recogmised on long-tenm contracts, If the final outcome can be assessed with reasonable certainty, by ncluding in
the profit and loss account turnover and related cosis as contract actity progresses Turnover s calculated by referance
to the value of work performed as a proportion of the total contract value

The geographical spht of tumover by destination s shown below

Group Group

Year anded Yaar ended

30 June 20t8 30 Jurs 2014

£€m £'m

UK 7885 727 4
Contnenta! Europe (including Republic of Ireland) 445 526
Rest of World 431 4586
Group turmover 8571 B256
Arqiva Broadcast Hotdings Limited Annual report and consolidsted financial statemonts
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2 Turnover and segmental reporting (continued)

The geographical spirt of tumaver by ongin Is shown below

Group Group

Yaar ended Yaar ended

36 Junas 2015 30 Juna 2014

f'm £'m

UK B365 8017
Continental Europe (including Republic of Irsland) 15 152
Rast of World 91 a7
Group tumover B5T 1 8256

Segmental reporting

For the year ended 30 June 2015 the Group organised its business inta five customer facing business units, supported
by & Technology division and central carporate funchions This structure 15 used to provide the following segmental
reporting in relabon to Group tumover This s stated net of intra-divisional trading

Termesimal Satellte and Digital Plalfarms Tetecoms Smari Metenng Tow!
Broadcast Media M2M
Em Em £m £€m £m E'm
Turnover for the year
ended
30 June 2015 2519 1512 156 0 2799 181 8571
30 June 2014 2581 163 9 138G 2518 128 8256

The majonty of assets employed and underlying costs are denved from a shared nfrastructure network common to all
operating business units An allocaton of such assels to the business units 1s not perdormed as part of the normal
reporting process within the business In the absence of a sudable allocation methodology and given the size of the
shared assets, the Directors are of the opinion that additional segmental reporing would nol provide any meaningful
information to the users of the financlal statements

Whilst managerment review directly attnbutable costs by each revenue generating business unit, the Directors are of the
opinion that further disclosure would be senausly prejudicial to the Group

Effective from 1 July 2015 the Group organised its business into four customer facing busingss units following the transfer
from Digital Platforms of OTT actvities tnlo Terrestrial Broadcast and hybnd TV services moving mio Satellite and Medta
Additionally the technotogy division was predomunantly integrated inte the other remaining customer facing business units
Subsequent to the year end, the Group announced the merger of Smart Metering M2M with Telecoms to provide a single
business umt known as Telecoms and M2M Tius 15 effective from 1 October 2015 {see page 14 for further details)

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annun! repart and conscfidated financlal statements
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3 Operating profit

Qperating profit 15 stated after charging / (creditng}

Group Group
Yaar ended Yoar anded
30.June 2015 a0 June 20414
£'m £'m
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 1183 1221
Depreciation of assels held under finance lease 04 05
Impawrment of owned fixed assets 35 -
Amortisation of goodwill in regpect of subsilianes 156 7 1551
Impaiment of goodwill 1n respect of subsidianes 223 .
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 21
Amorlisation of investments n joint ventures 05 D5
Impaimment of investments In joint ventures 79 -
Operating lease rentals
- Landg, butdings and other infrastructure 479 436
- Plant and machinery 20 18
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 03 24
Foreign exchange iosses f (gains) 03 {0 5)
Research and development expenditure 14 23
Granl iIncome {a7) (12}

Services provided by the Group’s Auditars and network firms

Dunng the year the Group cblained the following services fram the Group's Auditors at cosls as detaled belaw

Group Greup

Year ended Yuar ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

£'m £'m

Fees payable to Company Audhtors for the audit of parent company and consolidated 01 01
financial statements

Fees payable for the audit of the Company's subsidlares 03 03
Non-audit services

Other assurance services a2 04

Services relating to taxation o1 0t

Services relating to corporate finance {Incluging rafinancing) - 02

All other sanvices 01 -

Total cost of services provided by the Group's Audltars [+X:] 1.4

Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limited
Company registration no 05254001

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2015

54




4 Exceptional items

The Group recognises exceptional tems In accordance with FRS 3 'Reporting Financial Performance’ including where
matenal, tems that require disclosure by virtue of therr size or Inaidence for the financial statements to give a true and fair

view

Loss on ardinary activilies before taxation is staled after charging

Group Group Company Company
Year andad Yaar snded Yazr anded Year ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014 30 Juns 3015 30 June 2014
£'m £'m £m E'm
Admlnistrative sexpenses
- Rearganisation and severance (11 7) (62) (08} -
- Corporate finance actvities lincluding refinancing) - on -
- Other one off actvities - {18) - -
- Impairment (337 - - -
(45 4) {82) (0B} -
Financing income
- Gain on disposal of swap options 10 - - .
Financing expanseas
- Close out of swaps {100 5) {1123) - -
Total exceptlonal items (144 9) {120 5) {0 8) .

Reorgamisation and severance expenses inchide costs relating to the recent review of the Group's operating madel In

the pror year these relate to other business change projects

Impairment during the year relates to the wnte down of the camying value of non-core business areas and investments

Financing income compnses £1 O0m proceeds {2014 Enil) realised as a rasult of the disposal of £432 5m of the notional

pnneipat amount of the swap option (see note 17)

Financing expenses comprise a £100 5m cash ouiflow {2014 £112 3m) wn relation to the breaking of interest rate swap
agreements {see note 17) These termination payments were fully funded by a £100 5m premium (2014 partially funded
by a £105 3m premium with the remainder settled by a £7 Om cash payment) received for entering into the replacement

interest rate swaps

With the exception of impairment (2015 E33 7m, 2014 £nii} the expense amounts included within exceptonal tems

above are deductible for the purpose of taxation

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limited
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5 Staff costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group during the year was as follows

Group Group
Yaar ended Yagr enced
30 June 2016 30 Juns 2014
Number Number
Terrestnal Broadcast 551 550
Satellite and Medis 37 361
Digital Platforms 47 7
Telecoms 421 365
Smart Metenng 73 39
Technalogy and Corporate functions 891 650
Total staff numbers 2,160 2,002
This reflects the business unit siructure during the year ended 30 June 2015
The aggregate payrol costs of these persons were as follows
Group Group
Year ended Year snded
30 June 2015 A Juns 2014
£m £'m
Wages and salanes 1330 1239
Social sacunty costs 143 133
Other pension cosls 12 a1
Total staff costs 158 & 1473
Company

The Company had no employees dunng the year (2014

Amglva Broadcast Holdings Limited
Cofmpany registration no 0525400t
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6 Directors’ amoluments

During the year one Director (2014 one) was an employee of Argiva Limded (a subsidiary company), but was not a
member of any group pension schermne

One of Lhe Directors (2014 one) was a representative of the Company’s shareholders and his individugl remuneration
reflects the services he provides 1o the Company, Hs subsidianies and certain other entities outside of the Group It is
possible to make an accurate apporhianment of this Director’s emoluments 1n raspect of their service to the Group

Accordingly, this 18 taken inlo account in prowding the following disclosure

Group Group

Year ended Yeoar sndad

30 June 2018 30 Juns 2014

E'm E'm

Aggregale emolumenis 03 032
Compensation for loss of cfiice 01 -
Tolal amolumenis 04 03

All other Directors were representatives of the Company's sharehelders and their individual remuneration reflects the
services they provide {o the Company, its subsicianes and a number of other enlibes outside of the Group It s therefore
not possible to make sn accurate apporionment of each Director's emoluments in respect of ther service to the
Company and the Group except where sums are paid to third parties in respect of therr services Accordingly, the details
set out In the table above include no emoluments in respect of these Directors other than m relation ta sums paid to third

parties in respect of services

Highest paid director

Included in the above are emoluments in respect of the highest paid Director of

Group Group

Year endad Yoour ended

30 June 2018 30 Juns 2014

€m &m

Aggragate emolumants 02 03
Compensation for loss of office o1 -
Total emoluments 03 02

Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited
Company registration no 05254001
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7 Interest receivable and similar income

Group Group

Year ended Yaar snded

30 Juna 2018 30 June 2014

£'m £'m

Bank interast c4 04

Finance lease iterest recevable 03 02

Othar interest 18 17

Total interest receivable 25 3

Exceptional financing income {see note 4) 10 -

Total intarast receivable including exceptional items as 13
8 Interest payable and similar charges

Group Group

Yaar andad Yoar anded

30 June 2013 30 June 2014

E'm £'m

Bank loan interest 89313 144 5

Other loan interest 124 4 1112

Less Capitalised interest (17) -

Net bank and other loan interest 2150 2557

Amortisation of debl Issue costs 161 298

Release of deferred denvative close out casts 96 95

Finance laase interest 11 i1

Shareholder loan note interest 2448 2152

Other interest 207 197

Total Intarest payable 508 3 6311

Exceplional financing expenses (sae note 4) 1005 1123

Total interest payable including exceptional itams [:1i2: 3] 6434

Included within bank loan :nterest 1s the increase In the pnncipal accretion on inflation-kinked swaps of £150m (2014
£39 7m) (see note 17) Excluding this amount the net bank and other toan interest was £201 Om (2014 £216 Om) The
shareholder loan notes carry fixed interest rates of between 13% and 14%, which can be deferred at the option of the
Group

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limlited Annuzl report and consolldstod finznclal statements
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9 Tax onloss on ordinary activities

Group Group
Yaar ended Yaar ended
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
E'm £'m
{a) Analysls of tax charge / (credit) for the year
Current tax
UK comoration 1ax 01 02
Oversaas tax 04 04
Total current tax 0s 08
Deferred tax
Onglnation of hming differences {21 4)
Daracognition of deferred tax assets 586 -
Deferred tax an pension llabiity charged to profit and loss account 05 27
Impast of UK corporation tax rate change 46
Prior year adjustment - 47
Total deferred tax 57 1 {12 8)
Tax on |loss on orcinary activities 676 (182
{b} Factors atfacting the current tax charge for the year
The tax charge assessed for the year s different (2014 different) to the standard rate of tax
m the UK of 20 76% (2014 22 50%) The differences are explained below
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (508 5} (521 6)
Loss before taxation multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the Umited Kingdom of (105 5} (117 4)
20 75% (2014 22 50%)
Expenses not deductible for lax purposes 1] as
Amortsation and impairment of goodwill and Investments g 349
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 210 226
Non qualifying depreciahan 46 48
Loan nate interest not deductible in the year 395 372
Associate 7 j0int venture revenue / expense with no tax applicable (0 8) {07)
Generation of unrecognised tax losses 44 194
Utihsation of recognised tax losses (12) (3 4)
Other iming differences (18) -
Loss on disposal of flxed assets 03
Tatal current tax 05 06

In Finance Act 2013, the main rate of UK corporation tax was reduced from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 Apnt 2014 and
to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 For the purpose of this current tax charge analys:s a blended tax rate of 20 75% (2014
22 50%) has been used UK deferred tax has been recognised at the reduced rate of 20% (2014 20%) as this 1s the rate

at which deferred tax balances are forecast to unwind

On 8 July 2015 it was announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax would be further reduced to 19% from 1 Apnl
2017 and 18% from 1 Aprit 2020 As these changes had not been substantively enacled at the balance shee! date therr

effacts are not included in these financial statements

Asgiva Brosdeast Holdings Limited Annuat report and consolideted financlz! stataments
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10 Dividends

Dividends payable to minonty interests Group Group
Year vnded Yoar anded
30 June 2016 30 June 2014
£m £'m
Now Digital (East Midiands) Limited 02
Of £45 00 per shara {2014 none declarad) -
South Wast Digital Radio Limited 01 )
Of £1500 per share {2014 none declared)
Total dividends payable to minority interests 03 B
The above amounts represent dividends pald to minonty interest shareholders by Group companies
Company
No dimdends were paid to shareholders of the Company (2014 Enil)
11 Intangible assets
Group Licences Dsvalopment costs Accais rights Goodwlil Total
Em £m £€'m £m E'm
Cost
At 1 July 2014 68 18 231 30688 31005
Additions 07 08 - - 15
At 30 June 2015 T5 26 231 3,068 8 3620
Accumulated amortisation and
impalrment
At 1 July 2014 az 10 173 12122 1,233 7
Charged In the year 06 03 08 1567 158 4
Impalment - . - 223 223
At 30 June 2015 i8 13 181 1,3912 1414 4
Net book valus
At 30 June 2015 37 13 50 16776 1,687 6
At 30 Jure 2014 3s og 58 1,856 6 1,866 8

Development costs in respect of products and services that are belng developed by the Group are being capitalised in
accordance with SSAP 13  These are amorised over ther expected useful Ife once the product or service has been

commercially launched

impasrment dunng the year (2014 none) relates to the carrying value of non-core busingss areas and mvestments (sea

also note 4

Company

The Company has no intangible assels {2014 Enil)

Argiva Broadcest Hotdings Limited
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12 Tangible assets

Group Frashold land and Lazsshekd buildings Ptant and eguipmant Asssts under the Total
bulldings course of
constructlon
{AUC)
E'm E'm £'m £'m £'m
Cost
At 1 July 2014 3172 138 1 1,678 8 1367 226098
Additions - - 185 1623 1808
Completan of AUC 95 22 104 4 (1161) -
Disposals {@1) {07) 210 - (21 8)
At 30 June 2015 326 6 13886 1,780 7 1819 24288
Accumulated
depreclation
At 1 July 2014 177 g2 5028 - 550 5
Charge for the year 48 44 1105 - 1197
impaiment 04 01 30 - a5
Disposals (0 1) {07) (202) - 210)
At 30 June 2015 228 430 5959 - 6617
Net book value
At 30 June 2015 o3 8 956 1,184 8 10819 1,7671
At 30 June 2014 2695 g8 9 1,176 2 1357 1,710 3

The Group's fixed and other assets have been pledged as security under the terms of the Group's external debt facilities

{see note 26).

£1 7m (2014 Enll) of borrowing costs were capitalised dunng the year ended 30 June 2015 at a capitalisation rate of 3%

The aggregate amount of finance costs included In the cost of langible fixed assels totals £22 2m (2014 £20 5m)
Freehold land included above but nol depreciated amounts te £179 Om (2014 £178 Om)

Assels held under finance leases, capialised and included within fixed assets are shown in the table below

Land and bulldinga

E'm
Cost
At 1 July 2014 and 3G June 2015 112
Accumulated depreciation
AL 1 July 2014 {4 1)
Charge for the year (0 4)
At 20 June 2015 {4 5)
Net book value
At 30 June 2015 67
Al 30 June 2014 7

* Opening balances have been restated for reclassifications between cost and accumulated depreciation

Company
The Company has no tangible fixed assets (2014 nil)
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13 Investments

The Company's investments (held indirectly unless stated) are shown below

Company Country of Principal activities Yearend  Percentage of
incorporation ordlnary shares held

ABHL Digitat Limited Unted ¥Xingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
ABHL Digita! Radro Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
ABHL Multiplex Limied United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Aerlal UK Limited United Kingdom  Darmant company 30-Jun 100%
Arglva (Scotland) Limited United ¥angdom  Transmissign services 30-Jun 100%
Arglva Aerial Sites Lomited United Kingdom  Management of aanal sites 30-Jun 100%
Arglva Asia Lmited Hong Kong Satellite tranamission seqvices 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Broadcast Finance Pl United Kingdom  Financing vehicle 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Broadcast Limited United Kingdon  Dormant company 30-Jun 160%
Argiva Broadcast Parent Limited United Kingdom  Holdmg company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Communications Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company A0-Jun 160%
?:E::;a&:rﬁ;d&naﬁl Pension Pian Unlted Kingdom  Penslon company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Digital Limded United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Finance Limited Uniled Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Amva Financing No 1 Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Financing No 2 Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Financing No 3 Plc United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 99 99% (held directly}
Argva Financing Plc Unied Kingdom  Financing vehicle 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Group Holdings Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Group Intermediate Limited Untted Kingdom  Helding company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Group Parent Limited Unied Kingdom  Holding company A0-Jun 100%
Arglva Holdings Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Amqva Inc usA Satellte transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva International Hoidings Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%
Argva Limited Unlted Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Armgiva Limited Ireland Transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Medla Limited Unlted Kingdorn  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Arqlva Moblle Broadcast Limited United Kingdem  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Mobile Limited Unrted ¥ungdom  Dorman! company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Mobile TV Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Armgiva No 10 Limited Unded Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva No 11 Limited United Kingdom  Dormnant company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva No 2 Limited United Kingdorn ~ Transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Armgiva No 3 Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%
Argiva No 4 Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Argiva Pension Trust Lim:ted Unlted Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva PP Financing Ple United Kingdom  Financing vehicle 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Ple Limited Singapare Satellde transonission services 30-Jun 160%
Arqiva Public Safety Lemied United Kingdom  Dommant company 30-Jun 100%
Amiva SAS France Sateliite transmssion services 30-Jun 100%
Arqiva Satellite Limited United Kingdom  Cormant company 30-Jun 100%
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13 Investments (continued)

Company Country of Pnincipal activitias Yoarend Percantage of
In¢corporation ordinary shares held

Arqiva Senior Finance Limited United Kingdom  Flnancing vehicle 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Services Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%

Argrva Sman Financing Limited United Kingdam  Financing vehcle 30-Jun 100%

Arqtva Smart Holdings Limited tInded Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Smart Metenng Limited United Kingdom  Smart metenng commumcations  30-jun 100%

Arqiva Smart Parent Lirited United Kingdom  Hatding company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva SRL italy Satellite transmisslon serices 30-Jun 100%

Arqiva Swing Limied United Kingdon  Doermant company 30-Jun 100% (held directly)

‘Sg;ﬁ,:;’:‘;fg;"r:gf:;lm‘é?e’ United Kingdom ~ Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Arqiva Telecoms tnvestment Limited Umited Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Transmission Limited United Kingdom  Bormant company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva UK Broadcast Holdings Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva WiF Limited United Kingdom Wil services 30-Jun 100%

Amiva Wireless Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Capablue Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%

Cast Communications Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Connect TV (Scotland) Limited United Kingdoem  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Connect TV Limited United Kingdom  Transmussion servicas 30-Jun 100%

Dugital One Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%

:jg:g;a Communications (Holdings) United Kingdom  Dormant campany 30-Jun 100%

Inmedia Communications Group Limited  United Kingdorn Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

inmedia Commun:calions Limited United Kingdam  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

JFMG Limted United Kingdom  Spectrum sarvices 30-Jun 100%

Macropolitan Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Now Digital (East Midiands) Limited United Kingdom  Transmission sarvices 30-Jun 52 50%

Now Digitat (Oxford) Limited United Kingdormn  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%

Now Digitat (Southern) Limited Umted Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%

Now Digital Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 100%

NWP Spectrum Heldings Limited United Kingdorn  Holding company 30-Jun 100%

NWP Street Limited United Kingdom  WiF1 services 30-Jun 100%

Pnmrose No 1 Limited United Kingdom  Dormant campany 30-Jun 100% (held directly)

Scanners (Eurape) Limited United Kingdam  Oormant comgpany 30-Jun 100%

E;naxen:m Telewision Quiside Broadcasts Unded Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Selective Medla Limited United ¥ingdom  W\Fi services 30-dun 100%

South West Digtal Radio Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 66 67%

Spectrum Interactive (UK) Limited United Kingdom  Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Spectrum Interactive GmbH Germany Dormant company 30-Jun 100%

Spectrum Interactve Limited United Kingdom  Holding company 30-Jun 100%

Argiva Broadcasl Heldings Limited
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13 Investments {continued)

Company Country of Principal activities Year end Percentage of
Incorporation ordinary shares
heid

Joint ventures
Ownership and operation of UK DAB

Sound Digital Limited United Kingdom radho muttiplex icense 31-Dec 40%
Britsh Virgin
Arnts Alhance Media Invesiment Limited Islands Digital cinema distnbution 30-Jun 24 99%
YouView TV Linited United Kingdom  Open source IPTV development I1-Mar 14 30%
Assacilate undertakings
Bidding for UK DAB digttal radio "

Muxco Limited United Kingdom muttiplex licences 31-Dec 25%
DTT Muluplex Operators Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 25%
Digital UK Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-Jun 25%
DTV Services Limited United Kingdom  Fraeview market services 31-May 20%
MXR Holdings Limited United Kingdom  Transmission services 30-dun 12%

The following companies within the Group will adopt the Department for Business, Innovaton and Skills audit exemption
for the year ended 30 June 2015 As the ultimate parent company, ABHL will guarantee the vanous debis and habilities
held within these companies as required under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

Company reistcr:lr::%a: xmher
Argiva Group Intermediate Limited 8126989
Argiva Group Holdings Limted 8221064
Arqiva UK Broadcast Holdings Limited 5254048
Argiva Telecoms Investment Limited 3696564
JFMG Limtted 3297317
Arqiva Mobile TV Limited 4107732
Argiva Public Safety Limited 3341257
Aenal UK Limited 2333949
Arqiva Scotland Limited SC3I65509
Argiva Aenal Sites Limited 1460772
ABHL Dugttal Limited 3538787
ABHL Digital Radio Limited 3573732
Dugital One Limited 3537636
Now Digital Limited 3546921
Now Digital (Oxford) Limited 6314242
Now Digital {Southem) Limited 3654065
Connect TV Limited 07403839
Arqiva Financing No 2 Limited 06137899
Argiva International Holdings Limited 08753024
Argiva No 2 Limited 03922958
Argiva No 3 Limited 02973983
Argiva Smart Holdings Limited 08723422
Arqiva Smart Parent Limited 08723419
Argiva WiFi Limited 04414701
Capablue Limited 06962172
NWP Spectrum Holdings Limited 04412123
NWP Street Limited 04413822
Selective Media Limited 06575687
Spectrum Interactive Limited 04440500
Arqgiva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annuel report and consolidatad financlal statements
Company registration no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2015
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13 Investments (continued)

The following dormant companies within the Group will take the exemption from prepanng and filing financia! statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015 (by virue of 5394A and s448A of Companies Act 2006 respectively) As the ulimate
parent company, ABHL wili guarantee the vanous debts and liabilties held within these companies as required under
section 394C of the Compames Act 2006

Company ngisgg:jnoir:xmbar
ABHL Multiplex Limited D5138188
Arqva Broadeast Limited 03644575
Argva Communications Limited 02928853
Argva Digital Limited 03120642
Arqiva Financs Limited 03247387
Arqva Media Limded 02826184
Argwva Mobile Broadcast Limited 02815853
Arqwa Mobile Limited 03246721
Argiva No 4 Lirmited 02803056
Anqwa No 10 Lmsled 05393073
Argiwa No 11 Limited 05393079
Argiva Satallite Limited 02192952
Argiva Swing Limied 07140424
Argiva Telecommunications Asset Development Company Limited 03556595
Argqiva Transmission Lintad 03598122
Arqiva Wireless Limited 03055844
Cast Communications Limited 05097626
Connect TV (Scottand) Limited SC403621
Inmedia Communications {Holdings} Linited 02755211
Inmedia Communications Group Limited 05057612
Inmedia Communications Limited 05097623
Macropehtan Limited 05401565
Prmrose No 1 Limited 07045887
Scanners (Europe) Limited 02833712
Scanners Telavision Oulside Broadeasts Limitad 03391685
Spectrum Interactive (UK) Limited 03500162
Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limlted Annual raport and consolidated Fnancial statsments
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13 Investments (continued)

Group in In Total
assoclates and financtal
IﬂIM venturea Instruments
E'm £m E'm
Investments
At 1 July 2014 128 3o 158
Share of retained profit 24 - 24
At 30 June 2015 152 30 183
Accumulated amortisation and Impaliment
At 1 July 2014 23 30 53
Amoriisation charged in the year 05 - 05
Impaimment charged in the year 79 - 79
At 30 June 2015 107 30 17
Net book value
At 30 June 2015 48 - 46
At 30 June 2014 1086 - 106

The Diractors believe that the carrying values of the investments are supported by the underlying trade and net assets

Company Investmants In Investment in Total
tubsidiarios financial
tnsirumenta
Cm £m E'm
Cost
At 1 July 2014 1,767 0 30 1,770 0
Additions - . -
At 30 June 2015 1,767 0 30 1,770 0
Provision for impairment
At 1 July 2014 and 30 June 2015 - {(30) (30)
Net book value
At 30 June 2015 1,7670 - 1,767 0
At 30 June 2014 1,7670 - 17670

Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limitad
Company registrabon no 05254001

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2015
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14 Debtors

Group Group Company Campany

30 Juns 2018 33 Junw 2014 10 June 2018 30 Juna 2014

£'m £ £'m €m

Trade debiors 723 743 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertalings - - 18 18
Amounts owed by joint ventures {note 28) 0s 03 - -
Other debtors 84 134 - .
Prepayments and accrued income 156 2 1250 - .
Delerred tax asset - 566 - -
Yotal debtors 2374 886 19 18

Included wishin prepayments 1s £7 6m (2014 £12 1m) relaling to arrangement fees on undrawn facilities

The Directors consider that the fair value of debtors ciosely approximates to book value

Dafarrwd tax assol Grovp Group
30 June 2015 30 June 2014

Assat Asgat

£'m £m

At 1 July 56 6 352
(Debited) / credited to the profit and loss account (56 6) 214
At 30 June - b6 6
Accelerated captal sllowances - 527
Short term timing differences - 06
Tax losses - 33
Deferred tax asset - 566

Based on a review of long term forecasts of taxable profits, the deferred tax asset has been derecognised in the curreni
year as 1t 1s not anticipated to be realised in the foreseeabla future

The deferred tax asset has been calculated based on the LUK corporation tax rate of 20% (the rate substanbvely enacted
at the balance sheet date) Overall the Group has recogrused a deferred tax asset of £ni (2014 £56 6m)

The deferred tax asset at 30 June 2014 was considerad to be recoverable in more than one year

There 15 an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £120 5m (2014 £28 7m) This 1s in respect of tax losses (2015 £43 Sm,
2014 £28 7m) and deprectation In excess of capital allowances (2015 £76 6m, 2014 £nil) These are nol anticipated to
be utdised in the foreseeable future This value has been catculated based on the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (the
rate substantively enacled at the balance sheet date) This unrecognised deferred tax asset 1s anticipated to be utthised
whan there 1s taxable income in the relevant Group entities fo utilise the losses previously generated The timing of future
laxable profits which would exceed the level of allowable inlerest deductions and capital allowances s such that it is
subject to estimation uncertainty and accardingly it 15 considered prudent to de-recognise the deferred 1ax asset that was
recogmsed as at 30 June 2014 and not to recogmise any further deferred tax assels for the year 1o 30 June 2015

Amiva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statemants
Company registration no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2015
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14 Debtors (continued)

Finance [eases

Included within ‘cther debtors’ are the following amounts receivable under finance leases

Groap Group
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
£'m £m

Net investment in finance ieases and hire purchase contracts comprises
Total amounts receivable 43 47
Leases temninated [n the year 03) -
Less Intarest allocated to future years 13 an
Lease interest removed due to terminated leases 01) -
Total finance leages 26 30

Rentals recewvable dunng the year under finance leases and hire purchase contracts amount to £0 4m (2014 £0 4m)
Company

Amounts owed by Group underakings are unsecured Interest has been charged on £1 9m at 0% (2014 £1 Bm at 0%}
Of the above balances, £1 8m is in respect of amounts due in greater than one year (2014 £1 8m)

156 Cash at bank and in hand

Greup Group Company Campany

30 Juns 2015 30 June 1014 20 Juna 2015 30 June 2014

Em E'm £'m E'm

Cash at bank 172 178 01 01

Short term deposits 528 510 - -

Cash al bank and in hand 700 68 9 01 01
Rastncted cash 285 285

Total cash at bank and In hand LR 8T 4 o1 o1

The restricted cash balance relates to a reserve account required to cover one semi-annual mierest payment on the
£600 Om of junior bonds

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annual report and cansolidated fnanclal stataments
Company registration na 15254001 Year endad 30 June 2015
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group

Group

o,

[+

30 June 2015 30 Jure 3014 30 ..Ium;ﬂié 30 June rZD'I;

£'m £'m 'm £'m

Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 02 -
Trade credttors 44 4 775 - .
Qther {axes and sacial secunty costs 254 156 - -
Cther creddars 64 13 - -
Premium on Bwap 1ssuance 166 91 . -
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 7579 5130 - .
Accruals and deferred income 2925 284 0 08 01
Pancipal accretion on inflation-lnked swaps - 599 - -
Finance lease abhgations 04 03 - -
Total croditors amounts faliing due within one year 1,143 8 9707 10 o1

The Directors consider that the farr value of creditors amounts faliing due within ane year closely approximates to book

value

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured interest has been charged on £0 2m at 0% for Company balances

The shareholder loan notes carry a fixed rate of interest ranging between 13% and 14% which can be deferred at the
option of the Group, apphcable to the capital and un-paid interest The Group has exercised this option to defer interest

payments since June 2009

Proncpal accrelion an inflaton-linked swaps was settled in 30 June 2015 and therefore representad an amoun! due within
one year as al 30 June 2014 Subsequen! pnncpal accretion will be payabie on 30 June 2018 and will therefore be

shown wath amounts falling due after more than one year until 30 June 2017

Accruals and deferred income principally compnse amounts outstanding for ongoing costs and amounts receved from

customers in advance respactively

Argivh Broadcast Holdings Limited
Campany registraten ro 05254001

Annual report and conscfideted financial sigtements

Year endged 20 Juns 2015
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
E'm £'m

Bank loans
Seniar debt 7235 1,623 5
Other facilities 07 05
Capital expenduure facility 1200 -
Premuum on swap issuance 1720 g4 5
Less Issue costs {7 B) (14 2)
1,008 4 1,104 3

Other loans
Senor bonds 16125 13125
Junior bonds 6000 6000
Less Issue cosls (25 3) (28 5)
Daferred derivative close out costs {75 9) {85 5}
21113 1,798 5
Shareholder loan noles 1,273 8 12738
Other creditors 01 02
Accruals and defemred Income 1187 107 1
Finance lease obligations 134 137
Total creciters amounts falling due after more than one year 4,526 7 4,297 6

Accruals and deferred income principally comprise amounts outstanding for ongaing costs and amounts received from

customers in advance respeciively

Matunty of loans

The tolal loans analysed below represent total creditors amounts falting due after more than one year excluding issue
costs deferred denvative close cut costs, accruals and deferred mcome, and other credifors, and also includes the
following represented within creditors amounts falling due within one year finance lease obligations and premium on

sSwap 1ssuance

Group Group

30 June 2018 34 June 2014

E'm £'m

Within ona year 1740 683

In more than ona year, but not more than five years 16068 7372

In more than five years 29090 3,5613

Total loans 45328 4,387.8

Finance leases

Future mimimum payments under finance leases are as follows

Group Group

30 Juns 2015 30 June 204

£'m £'m

Within one year 14 13

In more than one year, but not more than five years 57 56

After five years 164 179

Total gross payments 235 48

Less finance charges included above [N {108)

Total finance leases 118 140

Argiva Broadcast Hoidings Limited
Company registrabon no 05254001

Annusl raport and consolidatad financial statements
Year anded 30 June 2015
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17 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Bank loans and other loans

Senior debt ncludes S-year lerm bank debt of £353 5m, due in 2018, borrowed by ASF under a Senlor Faciity
Agreement {£653 5m at 30 June 2014) The loan has a floating interest rate which ranges between LIBCR + 2 5% to
LIBOR + 4 00% by the end of the agreement AF1 has further undrawn facililies of £580 Om available

In January 2014, the Group compleled a £180 Om term loan from msttutional investors, the proceeds of which were used
to make a £180 Om part repayment of the onginal 3-year term bank faciliies This [oan has an expected term of 10 years
and ts held by AF1

In Juns 2014, the Group completed a loan of £190 Om from the European Investmenl Bank ('£18’) borrowed by AF1, with
an expecled term of 10 years The proceeds of this loan were utiised to settle the remaining £57 5m of the onginal 3-
year term bank facility and £132 5m to make a part repayment of the S-year term bank faciliies

in July 2014, the Group further paid down the remarnung 5-year faciity by £300 Orn o a balance of £353 5m

Senior bonds include the 1ssuance of £750 Om Notes raised in February 2013 and £164 Om Notes raised in February
2014 by Arqva Financing Plc (AF') These are rated BBB by Standard & Poors and Fitch These Notes have fixed
inferest rates which range between 4 04% and 534% and are repayable between June 2018 and December
2032 These Notes are bsted on the London Stock Exchange

In February 2014, the Group closed a £164 Om fixed rate public bond Issus, with an expected matunty of 2030 Net
proceeds (£162 5m) from the issuance were again used lo repay a portion of the onginal 3-year term bank facility
borrowed by ASF

Of the remaining senior bonds, £300 0m were raised in July 2014 at a coupon rate of LIBOR + 2 1% through a new 15-
year amortising US Prvate Placement debt 1ssue and £398 5m were raised in June 2013 by Argiva PP Financing Plc
{'APPF’) through a US Prvate Placement transaction in a combmed steriing and US dollar denominated offenng  These
Notes have fixed interest rates which range between 4 101% and 4 420% and have amortisng repayment profiles
commencing December 2018 with an end matunty date of June 2025

All of the above financing insiruments have covenants attached, principally an interest cover ratio and a debt leverage
ratio, and benefit from secunty over substantially all of the Group's assets under a Whole Business Securitisation
structure The Group continues to comply with all covenant requirements

Jumor bonds of K600 Om represent amaunts raised from the i1ssuance of Notes by Arqiva Broadcast Finance Ple
(ABF") These Noles have a fixed interest rate of 9 5% and are repayable in March 2020 These Notes are listed on the
Luxembourg Markel and have interast cover and debt leverage covenants attached The Group continues to comply with
all covenant requiremenis

In December 2013, as part of the Group's smarl metenng contract we estabhished two further faciities 1n Arqva Smart
Financing Limited (CASFLY), a Group company that sits outside the main WBS financing Group The Comms Hub
Receivables Purchasing ({CHuURF') facility allows the Group to borrow up to £30 Om, the Fee Facihty aliows the Group to
barrow up to £1 6m At 30 June 2015 a balance of £0 7m has been drawn (E0 5m drawn at 30 June 2014) agamnst the
fee facility, this loan has floating interest rates of LIBOR + 1 20% and is fully repayable on 30 June 2017 Thera were no
drawdowns on the CHuRP facility as at 30 June 2015, this loan has floating interest rates which range from LIBOR +
120% to LIBOR + 175% dunng the imtial six years of the faciity, increasing to LIBOR + 2 50% at the end of the
agreement in June 2026

The deferred denvative close out costs relate to costs imcurred in February 2013 on the termination of interest rate
swap instruments pursuant to the Group's refinancing and are deferred to reflect the economic substance of the Group's
onginal hedging strategy

The premium on swap issuance arose on a restructunng of certaln denvative financlal instruments whereby the Group
terminated existing interest rate swaps crystallising a loss of £100 5m in the year and £112 3m in the prior year (note 4)
and established new interest rate swaps with 2 nominal value, malunty and terms to malch the new financing
arrangements established The lermmaltion payment in the current year was fully funded by the £100 5m premium
receved from entenng into the replacement swaps The termination payment in the prior year was partially funded by the
£105 3m prermium received from entenng mto the replacament interest rate swaps The £7 Om difference between the
termination costs patd and the premium receved was cash seltled.

lidatad A

Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limitad Annuel report and jal stat t
Company ragisirabon no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2015
Ial




17 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

The shareholder loan notes are unsecured, are listed on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange and ere repayable
between March 2021 and March 2022 and cannot be called upon early The sharahalder loan notes camy a fixed rate of
interest ranging between 13% and 14% which can be deferred at the option of the Group, applicable to the capital and
un-paid interest The Group has exercised this aption to defer interest payments since June 2009 and a balance of
£757 9m (2014 £513 Om) s held w relation to accrued interest (note 16)

Derivative financiatl instruments

At refinancing In February 2013, the Group restructured s £2,335 7m of inlerest rate and inflabon swaps Since that
date there has been some further restructunng as a result of the above changes to the bank and other loans held by the
Group

In July 2014 the Group restructured a further £300 Om notinnal value of interest rate swaps so that they are contracted
by AF1 rather than ASF with matunty and terms to match the new 15-year amortising US Prwale Placement debt issue
The associated premium was £100 5m which fully offset the loss crystalised leaving a zero net cash settlement,
matching the breakage costs incurred on the ASF swaps thal were replaced

£1,023 5m of variable rate debt 13 now hedged via three classes of interest rate swaps contracted by Arqiva Senior
Finance Limited (ASF') and AF1 at an average fixed rate of 6 2127% The ASF mterest rate swaps {nommal value
£353 2m} have 5 year mandatory break clauses co-termmus with the ASF vanable rate bank debt which 1s due wn 2018
The interest rate swaps held by AF1 (combined nominal values of £670 Om) have maturity dates of between 10 and 15
years, co-lerminus with the Institutional Term Loan (ITL") and E1B loans and the amoriising US Private Placement debt
1ssue in July 2014

£1,312 &m of fixed and varable rate debt 1s hedged wia three classes of inflation tinked swaps which fix Interest at an
average rate of 2 9498% indexed with RPI In addition, tha principal amount of these swaps increases with RPI Two
classes of these swaps are break free One class of these swaps, with a nominal value of £235 Om, has a 10 year
mandatory break clause In 2023 the terminalion payment falls due which reflects the fair value of the remaining
payments otherwise due unti matunty The matunty date for all three classes of inflation swaps Is April 2027

AF1 has entered inlo £1,312 5m of floating / fixed interest rale swaps to overlay the above RP! swaps, amending the
cash flow charactenstics o align to the fixed coupon payable on lhe senior bonds and USPP debt In addition, AF1
entered into USD 358 Om of cross-cumency swaps lo fix the Sterling cost of future interest and capital repayment
cbligations relating to the USD tranche of the Pnvate Placement at an exchange rate of 1 52

On 30 June 2015, the Group cash-setiled the principal accretion on inflation-finked swaps of £74 9m This amount 1s
calculated on an accruals basis based upon RPI data, and is to be setlled on a tri-annual basis As at 30 June 2014
£59 9m was included within creditors falling due within one year

The remairung farr value of the interest rate, inflation and cross currency swaps at 30 June 2015 (excluding the inflation
swap pnnopal accrehon and the premium on swap tssuance), 1S a hability of £1,143 1m (2014 E1,228 Om) which
compnses £925 1m (2014 £978 5m) in relation to the RPI hnked swaps, £201 7m (2014 £220 3m) i relaton to the
interest rate swaps, and £16 3m (2014 £28 2m) in relation to the cross curency swap  This fair value is not recognised
on the balance sheet in accordance with Group accounting policy and UK GAAP accounting standards and 15 calculated
on a mark-fo-marke! basis

The Group holds Swap Oplions with a tatal notional pnncipal amount of £410 7m (£843 2m at 30 June 2014) The
options are exercisable at matunty {co-terminus with the flaating rate bank debt drawn in February 2013), and hedge the
Group's exposure for the duration of the nterest rate swaps to a dectine in LIBOR below 1% Dunng the year £432 5m of
lhe national pnnctpal amount of the Swap Option was sald for a value of £1 Om following the recent rafinancing actvity

Company
The Company has no creditors amounts faling due after more than one year (2014 nil)
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18 Provisions for liabilities

Group 0 D ing Restr ring Remsdlatlon Cther Total
contret

Em £'m £'m £m £'m £m
At 1 July 2014 20 aar 32 35 0s 478
Reieased to profit and loss account - (0 3) - B (03)
Charged to profit and loss account 36 - M7 04 - 157
Changes ralaling to movements in - 1.7 - - - 17
the discounted amount
Uulised {02) {0 6) {&8) - - {86)
At 30 June 2015 54 398 58 38 05 554

The onerous contract provisions relale to suppher confracts where the costs are expected to exceed the benefits, and
onarous lease contracts where the buildings are emply but lease costs are being incurred The provisions are expected to

be utlised over the next five years

Provisions are made for decommissioning and asset at risk costs where the Group has an obligation to restore sites and
the cost of restoration Is not recoverable from third parties  The provision is n relation to assats of which the remaming

useful economic Iife ranges up to 19 years

The restructunng provision relates to the costs of a rearganisation of Group operations which will continue to be utdised

duning the next financial year

The remediation provision represents the cost of works identified as being required across a number of the Group's sites
and i5 expected to be utilised over the next two to three years

Other provistons represent a vanaty of smaller items which are expected to be utilised over the next one to three years

Company
The Company has no prowisions (2014 nil)

18 Share capital

Group and Company  Group ahd Company

30 June 2015 30 Juna 2014
E'm £'m
Allotted, called up and fully pand

653 928,000 (2014 653,928,000) ordinary shares of £1 each 6539 6539

20 Share premium account
Group and Company
£'m
356

At ¢ July 2014 and 30 June 2015

it —iii————

Amlva Brogdeast Holdings Limited
Company registrat on ag 05254001
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21 Profit and loss account

£m
Group
At 1 July 2014 (2,327 9)
Actranal loss on pension scheme (See note 27) {69)
Movement on deferred tax relating la pension asset 14
Exchange adjustments offset In reserves (transiation of foreign mvestments) 0N
Loss for the financtal year (566 2)
At 30 June 2015 {2,900 3)
£'m
Company
Al 1 July 2014 78913
L.oss for the financial year (0 8}
At 30 June 2015 7986
22 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ (deficit} / funds
Year anded Yoar ended
30 June 2045 36 June 2014
£'m £'m
Group
Loss for lhe financial year (566 2) (503 7)
Other recogn:sed gains and lusses relating lo the year 62) 40)
Net change in shareholders' deficit (5724) (507 7)
Opening shareholders’ deficit {1,358 4) (850 7)
Clesing shareholders’ deficit {1,930 8) {1,358 4)
Company
Loss for the financial year (08) -
Net change in shareholdars’ funds 08) -
Opening shareholders funds 1,768 8 1,768 8
Closing shareoholders’ funds 1,768 0 1,768 8
Arglva Broadcast Holdings Limited Annuzl repart and consolidated financial statemants
Company registration no (5254001 Year ended 30 Juna 2015
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23 Cash flow from operating activities

Reconciation of aperating profit to net cash inflow from operating actities

Group Group

Year anded Year ended

30 June 2015 0 June 2014

E'm E'm

Qperating profit 942 11789
Depreciation charge 1187 1226
Amortsation charge 158 % 1577
Impaiment of goodwill g2 -
Impaiment of tangible fixed assels a5 -
Loss on disposal of langible fixed assels 03 12
{Increase) / Decrease In deblors (29 1} 21
Decrease n crediors {33) {517)
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 57 {77
Tatal net cash inflow from aoperating activities 3801 3421

Net cash inflow from operating aclvities includes cash outflows relating to exceptional items of £5 8m (2014 £7 7m) The
exceptional costs accrued at 30 June 2015 of £5 Bm are expected to be paid within the next financial year

24 Analysis of changes in net debt

Note At1 July 2014 Cash flows Non-cash changes At 30 June 2015

£'m £'m £'m E'm

Cash al bank and in hand* 15 689 11 - 700
Loans to joinl ventwres 14 03 02 - 05
Debt due within one year 16 {89 1) 749 (22 4) {16 6)
Debt due after one year 17 (4,176 6) (102 1) {114 B) {4,393 5)
Finance [gases 16,17 {14 0) 02 - (13 &)
Totat (4,190 5) {257} (137 2) (4,353 4)

* Thig excludes the restricied cash balance of £28 5m relating to a reserve accoun! (see note 15)
Debt due after one year compnses bank lpans, other loans, and shareholder loan noles as shown within note 17

Major non-cash changes include recognition of exceptional financing costs in relation to breaking interest rate swaps and
a movement m unamortsed debt 1ssue costs

Arglva Broadcast Holdings 1imited Annual report snd consolidated financlal statements
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25 Commitments for expenditure

Capltal commitments

Commitments for the acquisihon of plant and equipment contracted for al the reporting date but not recognised as a
liability are payable as follows

30 Juna 2016 0 June 2014

£m £m

Within pne year 335 337
Within two to five years G2 107
Total capital commitments 37 44 4

Commitments due within one year mnclude £16 7m i refation to the Smarl Melenng conlract (2014 £17 5m)
Commitments due within two to five years include £0 1m in relation to the Smart Metening contract (2014 £9 5m)

Operating leases

Annual commitments n relation to non-cancellable operating leases for land, buldings and other infrastructure lacations
expinng

30 June 2045 30 June 2014

£m E'm

Within ona year 07 0%
Later than one year but not later than five years =41] 78
Later than five years 154 146
Total fand, buildings and other Infrastructure locations annual lease commitments 251 229

The annual commiments above exclude amounts relating to contingent rentals, cancellable leases and leases which
have expired therr mbial term and now operate on a raling notice penod of less thar one year Accordingly, the annual
lease expense seen in note 3 1s greater than the commitment shown above

Other annual lease commitments expiring

10 June 2015 30 June 2014

£'m E'm

Within one year 04 04
Later than one year bul nol later than five years 14 049
Total other annual leage commitments 1.8 13

26 Contingent liabilities

Under the terms of the Group’s external debt faciiies, the Group has provided security over substanbally all of s
tangible, intangibla and other assets by way of a Whole Business Secunbsabon {WBS') structure,

Amliva Brosdcast Holdings Limited Annual roport snd conzolidated Nnancial stataments
Company registralion no 05254001 Yaar ended 30 June 2015
76




27 Pension commitments

Defined benefit scheme

In the year to 30 June 2015, the Group operated one defined benefit scheme, sponsared by Argiva Limited The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of Arqiva Limited n trustee admimnstered funds

Trienmal valuation

The tnennial valuaton of the Group’s defined benefit pension obligations as at 30 June 2014, for actuanal funding
purposes, had resulted in an assessed defial of £17 4m Gross plan habilities at the valuation date were £130 5m
compared to gross plan assets of £113 1m Arqva Linmmted has agreed with the trustee to make deficrt recovery payments
into the Plan dunng 2013 (£5 7m) and 2014 (£5 7m), with one further payment made of £4 1m in July 2015 A new
tnennial valuation will be finalised as at 30 June 2014 in the coming months The FRS 17 valuation as at 30 Juna 2015
has been prepared on the preliminary results of the 30 June 2014 tnenmal valuation

FRS 17 assumptions

The assumptions used for the scheme for the purpose of the FRS 17 accounting posilion as at the year end are set out
below, along with the fair value of assets of £196 5m (2014 174 4m), a breakdown of the assels into the main assel
classes, the present value of the FRS 17 lzbilitbes of £189 9m (2014 £168 7m) and the defictt / surplus of assels below /
above the FRS 17 liabiliies (wiich equals the gross pension asset of £nil (2014 £3 8m))

An actuanal valuaton for the purpose of statutory reporting under FRS 17 was carned out at 30 June 2015 in consullation
with an independent fin of consulting actuanes, Lane Clark & Peacack LLP The pnncipal assumptions made are

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Prica infiation (RP1) 320% 3 30%
Pnce infialion (CP1) 2 20% 230%
Discount rate 4 00% 4 40%
Penslon increases {LP1 with a minimum of 3%) 370% 3 70%
Salary growth 270% 2 80%
Life expectancy of a male age 60 (current pensioner) 27 Qyrs 26 Byrs
Life expactancy of a male age 60 (future pensioner) 28 Syrs. 28 4yrs

As required by FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits', the value of the defined benefit labilities has been measured using the
projected unit method

Asset distribution and long term rate of return expected

30 June 2018 30 June 2018 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
Expected ratum Falr valus Expected retum Falr value
£€m Em
Equities nia 859 7 20% 751
Bonds nia 1101 3 80% 834
Cash nia 05 0 50% 59
Total 196 5 174.4
Balance shest
Total fair value of assels 186 5 174 4
Present value of scherme habtihies (189 9) {169 7)
Gross pansian asset 66 47
imecoverable pension scheme surplus {6 6) -
Surplus recogised on the balance sheet - 47
Deferred tax habity - {0 9)
Net pension asset - 38

No amounts within the farr value of the arrangements are in respect of the Company’s own financial instruments or any
property occupied by, ar assets used by, the Group
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27 Pension commitments (continued)

Argiva Limited pays contnbutions of betwaen 24 1% and 32 7% of pensionable salaries for the majonty of the 351 active
members of the scheme as at the last irlennial valuation date, plus the cosl of matching Additional Voluntary
Contnbutions (AVCs')

The Group 1s currently consulting with the trustees and members of the defined benefit pension scheme to close the
schems to future accrnual with a potential effective date of 31 October 2015 At the current time, the Group does nol have
a formally agreed positon in relation to the FRS 17 accounting surplus raported in relaton to the scheme and therefore
given the uncertainty as to the future level of contnbutions to the scheme the Group has applied a restriction on the
recognition of the scheme surplus in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

The present value of the scheme habilibies has moved over the year as foliows

Yaar ended Yezr anded

30 June 2015 30 Junw 2014

£m £'m

1 July 1697 1501

Current service costs 47 46

Contnbutions by employees 14 13

Interest on post retirement kabdities 75 73

Benefits paid (3 (2 8)

Past senice costs ga -

Actuarial loss 101 82

30 June 1859 1697

The fair value of the scheme assels has moved over the year as follows

Yaar ondad Your snded

30 June 2018 38 June 3014

£'m £'m

1 July 174 4 1471

Expected return on scheme assels 23 88

Acluariai gain {actual return less expected retum on scheme assats) 98 X

Contributions by amployer 55 16 %

Contnbulions by employees 14 13

Benefits paid (39) (2 8)

3¢ June 1686 5 174 4
Arglva Broadcast HoldInga Limited Annuaf report and consolldated financial statements
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27 Pension commitments {continued)

The post retirement surplus under FRS 17 moved over the year as follows

Year ended Yaar snded

30 Juna 2013 30 June 2014

£€m E'm

Surplus / {defict) a1 1 July 47 (30)

Currenl service cosls (47) (4 6)

Pasl service costs (0 4) -

Contnbutions 55 161

Other net finance incoms 18 15

Acluatial loss {03) 53

Irracoverable pension scheme sumplus (6 B) .

Surplus at 30 June - 47

The following amounts have been included within operating profit

Year anded Yaar sndsd

10 June 2015 34 Juns 2044

£'m £'m

Current services cast (employer only) 47 46

Past services cosls {employer only) 04 -

Total operating charge 51 4.6
The following amounts have been included as net finance income under FRS 17

Year anded Your ended

30 June 2015 30 June 2014

Em om

Expacted return on scheme assets 93 38

Interest on post setiremenl labilities {7 5) 73

Neot finance income 18 15

The actual return on scheme assels was £19 1m (2014 £12 Tm)

The foliowing amounts have been recognised within the statement of group tofal racognised gains and losses ('STRGL')
under FRS 17

Yaar ended Year ended

30 June 2015 20 June 2044

em £'m

Aclual return less expected return on scheme assels 98 39
Expenance gains arising on scheme liabilities 28 -
Losses due to changes in assumplions underfying the FRS 17 value of scheme liabliities {129) (92}
Irrecaverable pension scheme surplus 6 6) -
Actuarial loss racognised In the STRGL {6 9) 53

The financial assumptions as at 30 June 2015 have changed since 30 June 2014, as a resull of changes in market
condittons  This would ptace a higher value on the Plan’s habihties, and has resulled in an actuanal loss of £12 4m
Changes in mortality assumplions have also resulted in an actuanal loss of £0 5m over the penod

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recogmsed in the STRGL 1s a loss of £27 Tm (2014 £20 8my)
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27 Pension commitments (continued)

The history of expenence gains and losses is

2015 2014 2013 w1 2011

£'m E'm £'m £'m £'m
Present value of scheme liabiliies (189 9} {168 7) (150 1) (131 3) (108 5)
Farr value of scheme assets 186 5 174 4 1471 1282 1131
Surplus / (Deficit) on scheme - 47 {(30) PO 38
Actual return |ess expected ratum on scheme assats 98 39 75 33 1086
Percentsge of Scheme’s assets 5% 2% 5% {3%) 9%
Expenence gains ansing on scheme's liabilties 28 . - 17 -
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the schema's liabilities 1% 0% 0% {1%) D%
Tatal amount recognised in the STRGL (8 9) [CR] (0 5) (13 8) 125
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scherme's Habililes 0% 3% 0% 1% (11%)

The scheme 15 closed to new entrants and under the method used to calculate pension costs in accordance with FRS 17,
the cost as a percentage of covered penstonable payroll will tend to increase as the average age of the membership
Incroases

Other pension schemes
Argiva Limited

Arqiva Limited has operated a defined contnbution scheme during the year, for those employees who are not members
of the Defined Benefit scheme descnbed above Contributions payable In respect of this scheme for the year were £6 4m
(2014 £54m) The assets of the scheme are held outside of the Group

An amount of £0 9m (2014 £1 Om) Iis included In accruals being the outstanding contnbutions to the defined contnbution
scheme

28 Related party disclosures

On a consolidated basts, transactions and balances between Group entiies have been eliminated in full and are therefore
nol disclosed in accordance with FRS 8 'Related party disclosures’

The Company has taken advantage of the examphons available under FRS 8 for disclosure of transactions with entiies
that are part of the Group as related parties in these financial stalements

Related party transactions-

As at 30 June 2015, the amount outslanding from Ars Aliance Media Investment Limited, a joInt venture company,
ncluding accrued interest was £0 Sm (2014 £0 3Im} This balance has Increased with a further loan advanced dunng the
year Interest charged duning the year was £59,000 at 12% (2014 £22,000 at 12%)

In 2015 the Group received a dvidend from MXR Holdings Limited, a Company in which the Group has a trade
investment, of £0 im {2014 £0 1m) and a dividend from YouView TV Limited, a joinl venture cornpany, of £0 2m (2014
£03m)

The Group paid marketing costs of £1 2m (2014 £1 3m) to DUK Limited, a jont venture

The Group paid subscnptions of £5 7m (2014 £3 Om) to DTV Senvices Limited, an associate undertaking, and £0 9m
(2014 £3 4m) to YouView TV Limited, a joint venture

As referred to in the Strategic repor, the Group have signed a contract with Thames Water Utilities Limited to provide
smarl water metering services Thames 1s a related party by virtue of a common sharehelder In 2015 revenues for this
contract were £0 7m (2014 Enal)
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28 Related party disclosures (continued)

There are two investor companies, FICAL and MEIF [, which are related partes with the Group in accordance with FRS
8, by virtue of significant shareholding tn the Group Refer to the Directors Report for further details of these investor

companies
2018 MGIF N MEIF || + Mecqusna FICAL +
Prism *
Em Em m £Em
Sharehaolder loan notes 47 344 8 93 B65 2
Sharaholder loan note interest for the ysar 12 623 21 1202
Accrued sharehcider loan note mterest 59 1716 82 3306
* A related party by wirtue of common influence
+ An Invesior company and a related party by virtue of significant shareholding (as at 30 June 2015}
2614 MGHF Il * MEIF Il + Macquarie FICAL +
Prism *
Em £im £m Em
Sharseholder loan noles 47 1448 93 665 2
Shareholder loan note mterest for the year 11 548 18 1057
Accrued shareholder loan note interest 47 1093 B1 210.4

* A relaled party by virtue of common influence
+ An investor company and a related parly by wrtue of significant shareholding {as at 30 June 2014)

29 Controlling parties

The Company Is owned by a cansortium of shareholders including Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, Macquarne
European Infrastructure Fund Il, other Macquane managed funds and minonties There 15 no ulimate controling panty of

the Company, as defined by FRS 8

The Company is the parent company of the largest group to consolidate these financial statements
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